

State IEU 146 State House Station Augusta, Maine 04333 Phone: (207) 624-6660 Fax: (207) 624-6784

Aroostook County CDS 985 Skyway Street Presque Isle, Maine 04769 Phone: (207) 764-4490 Fax: (207) 769-2275

Downeast CDS 247 Main Street Machias, Maine 04654 Phone: (207) 255-4892 Fax: (207) 255-6457 Ellsworth Location: Phone: 667-7108 Fax: 664-0461

CDS First Step 5 Gendron Drive, Suite 1 Lewiston, Maine 04240 Phone: (207) 795-4022 Fax: (207) 795-4082

Midcoast Regional CDS 91 Camden Street, Suite 108 Rockland, Maine 04841 Phone: (207) 594-5933 Fax: (207) 594-1925 Damariscotta Location: Phone: 563-1411 Fax: 563-6312

CDS Opportunities 16 Madison Avenue Oxford, Maine 04270 Phone: (207) 743-9701 Fax: (207) 743-7063 Rumford Location: Phone: 369-9373 Fax: 369-0873

CDS Project PEDS 163 Silver Street Waterville, Maine 04901 Phone: (207) 877-2498 Fax: (207) 877-7459 Farmington Location: Phone: 778-6262 Fax: 778-5548

CDS Reach 50 Depot Road Falmouth Maine 04105 Phone: (207) 781-8881 Fax: (207) 781-8855 Topsham Location: Phone: 729-8030 Fax: 729-8022

Two Rivers CDS 250 State Street Brewer, Maine 04412 Phone: (207) 947-8493 Fax: (207) 990-4819 Dover-Foxcroft Location: Phone: 947-8493 Fax: 564-0019

York County CDS 39 Limerick Road Arundel, Maine 04046 Phone: (207) 985-7861 Fax: (207) 985-6703



February 1, 2014

- To: The Honorable Justin Alfond, President of the Senate 3 State House Station, Augusta, Me 04333-0003
- From: Cindy Husson Brown, State CDS Director ^ℓ 𝖉</sup> State Intermediate Educational Unit-Child Development Services 146 State House Station, Augusta, ME 04333

RE: <u>Report Back on P.L. 2011, c 616:</u> <u>An Act to Implement the</u> <u>Recommendations of the Office of Program Evaluation and Government</u> <u>Accountability and the Government Oversight Committee Regarding Quasi-</u> <u>Independent State Entities.</u>

Enclosed please find this year's report back on P.L. 2011, c 616 from Child Development Services (CDS). Included with the report is a copy of the Request for Proposals for a new data system that is moving forward right now and a letter from Commissioner Bowen to Commissioner Millett that includes updates on many of the initiatives underway within the CDS program. CDS has made progress towards fully implementing this law and would be happy to discuss further the contents of our master work plan, which will continue to increase accountability, efficiencies and effective interventions for children birth through five in Maine. I can be reached directly at 624-6663 or through my Administrative Assistant, Sue Kendall at 624-6662 as well as by email at Cindy.Brown@Maine.gov.

Thank you for allowing me to report on the continuing efforts to improve our Early Intervention and Early Childhood Special Education System for Maine children.

State IEU 146 State House Station Augusta, Maine 04333 Phone: (207) 624-6660 Fax: (207) 624-6784

Aroostook County CDS 985 Skyway Street Presque Isle, Maine 04769 Phone: (207) 764-4490 Fax: (207) 769-2275

Downeast CDS 247 Main Street Machias, Maine 04654 Phone: (207) 255-4892 Fax: (207) 255-6457 Ellsworth Location: Phone: 667-7108 Fax: 664-0461

CDS First Step 5 Gendron Drive, Suite 1 Lewiston, Maine 04240 Phone: (207) 795-4022 Fax: (207) 795-4082

Midcoast Regional CDS

91 Camden Street, Suite 108 Rockland, Maine 04841 Phone: (207) 594-5933 Fax: (207) 594-1925 Damariscotta Location: Phone: 563-1411 Fax: 563-6312

CDS Opportunities

16 Madison Avenue Oxford, Maine 04270 Phone: (207) 743-9701 Fax: (207) 743-7063 Rumford Location: Phone: 369-9373 Fax: 369-0873

CDS Project PEDS 163 Silver Street Waterville, Maine 04901 Phone: (207) 877-2498 Fax: (207) 877-7459 Farmington Location: Phone: 778-6262 Fax: 778-5548

CDS Reach 50 Depot Road

Falmouth Maine 04105 Phone: (207) 781-8881 Fax: (207) 781-8855 Topsham Location: Phone: 729-8030 Fax: 729-8022

Two Rivers CDS 250 State Street Brewer, Maine 04412 Phone: (207) 947-8493 Fax: (207) 990-4819 Dover-Foxcroft Location: Phone: 947-8493 Fax: 564-0019

York County CDS 39 Limerick Road Arundel, Maine 04046 Phone: (207) 985-7861 Fax: (207) 985-6703



February 1, 2014

To: The Honorable Mark Eves, Speaker of the House Maine Legislature2 State House Station, Augusta, Me 04333-0002

From: Cindy Husson Brown, State CDS Director State Intermediate Educational Unit-Child Development Services 146 State House Station, Augusta, ME 04333

RE: <u>Report Back on P.L. 2011, c 616:</u> An Act to Implement the Recommendations of the Office of Program Evaluation and Government Accountability and the Government Oversight <u>Committee Regarding Quasi-Independent State Entities.</u>

Enclosed please find this year's report back on P.L. 2011, c 616 from Child Development Services (CDS). Included with the report is a copy of the Request for Proposals for a new data system that is moving forward right now and a letter from Commissioner Bowen to Commissioner Millett that includes updates on many of the initiatives underway within the CDS program. CDS has made progress towards fully implementing this law and would be happy to discuss further the contents of our master work plan, which will continue to increase accountability, efficiencies and effective interventions for children birth through five in Maine. I can be reached directly at 624-6663 or through my Administrative Assistant, Sue Kendall at 624-6662 as well as by email at Cindy.Brown@Maine.gov.

Thank you for allowing me to report on the continuing efforts to improve our Early Intervention and Early Childhood Special Education System for Maine children.

CHILD DEVELOPMENT SERVICES

REPORT BACK ON P.L. 2011, c. 616

FEBRUARY 1, 2014

February 1, 2014 Report from Child Development Services (CDS)

Required by Legislative Document No. 1843

H.P. 1364

An act to Implement the Recommendations of the Office of the Program Evaluation and Government Accountability and the Government Oversight Committee Regarding Quasi-Independent State Entities

§12023. Reports to the Legislature

1. Adoption and implementation status of written policies and procedures required by section 12022 and describing the measures the governing body intends to use to monitor compliance with those policies and procedures.

CDS STATUS REPORT for section 12022. Financial Policies and Procedures

Item 3 - Selection of Vendors (please refer to Appendix A)

A. Child Development Services will use the State of Maine, Division of Purchases Procurement Process including the Request for Proposal Process as the standard method to competitively pre-qualify vendors for delivery of Early Intervention and Special Education and Related Services for Children ages Birth through school age five as well as for various <u>FEBRUARY 1, 2014 STATUS</u>: Early last fall CDS drafted a rule to address the standard method to competitively pre-qualify vendors of Early Intervention/Early Childhood Special education. Commissioner Bowen stepped down September 12, 2013 and there was not an acting Commissioner appointed for several months. The DOE was without a Commissioner to give input on the draft rule and to shepherd the process. Given that circumstance and that CDS has made steady progress, the DOE decided not to pursue rulemaking this legislative session. This will be revisited for the next legislative session given the establishment of consistent leadership within the Department of Education.

(Please refer to progress and changes at CDS in the attached letter to Commissioner Sawin Millett, Jr. from Commissioner Steven Bowen dated 9/9/2013 regarding the Advisory Committee on Fair Competition with Private Enterprise)

Key improvements now in place are:

• All provider contracts are generated from the State CDS office, which has dramatically streamlined the process and increased consistency statewide.

- The provider contract and requirements have been significantly revised, with increased clarity of language and expectations that are in line with the Maine Unified Special Education Regulations.
- A navigation bar on the CDS state website provides information and required documents to the CDS providers.
- B. Competitive Procurement may need to be waived during the course of a given fiscal year, after awards and contract establishment have been put in place in the event that identified children cannot be timely served by the current cadre of qualified vendors **FEBRUARY 1, 2014: NO UPDATES**
- C. Procurements exceeding \$10,000 not competitively procured will be justified in writing and maintained at the CDS central office within the Fiscal Department for a five year period. <u>FEBRUARY 1, 2014</u>: CDS successfully developed an RFP for

completion of the annual fiscal audit and an award was made with a successful contract negotiated for last year with a renewal option over 3 years. In addition, CDS currently has an RFP for a new Early Childhood Intervention Management System (a new data system) that is in the bidder review process right now. An award is anticipated in the next few weeks. This new data system is critical to further improvements to the CDS system on a statewide basis.

Item 4 – <u>Contributions</u> <u>FEBRUARY 1, 2014: NO CHANGES/UPDATES</u>

- A. Payment of membership dues to the Maine Administrators of Services for Children with Disabilities (MADSEC) for the nine regional CDS Directors, the State Director of Early Childhood Special Education and the Deputy Director has been a long established past precedent in the management employment agreement with these staff.
- B. MADSEC memberships are budgeted and accounted for in the administrative expenses of the regional budgets and in the aggregate total.
- C. Documentation is required in the form of a registration form, a membership certificate and is kept both locally and with fiscal backup at the state office.
- D. The budget is reviewed and approved at the state CDS office and in conjunction with the MDOE staff.
 <u>*CDS makes no other contributions as described in the definitions in section</u> <u>12021-3.</u>

Item 5 - Travel, meals and entertainment (please refer to Appendix B)

FEBRUARY 1, 2014 NO CHANGES/UPDATES

- CDS does not support payment for any form of entertainment.
- A. Travel and meal costs are required to be directly related to staff job descriptions.
- B. The CDS policy addresses the person's for whom CDS will pay travel, lodging and meals and under what conditions.
- C. Prior approval of lodging expenses is required and documented, travel and meals are documented, verified, approved and either paid directly, depending on the circumstance or reimbursed to the employee via the payroll department.
- D. All travel, lodging and meals are expensed as distinct line items in the CDS budgets and recorded in the accounting documentation.
- E. The annual budget is approved by the CDS State Director and MDOE staff and periodic reports on actual costs are provided to the MDOE.

Item 6 – Lobbying –

FEBRUARY 1, 2014 NO CHANGES/UPDATES

• CDS does not and may not retain a paid professional lobbyist.

Appendix A

Child Development Services Request for Proposals FOR eCIMS

STATE OF MAINE Child Development Services



RFP # 201309603

Request for Proposals for Early Childhood Intervention Management System

RFP Coordinator

Cindy Brown, Director Child Development Services 23 State House Station Augusta ME 04333

Tel: (207) 624-6633 e-mail: cindy.brown@maine.gov

From the time this RFP is issued until award notification is made, all contact with the State regarding this RFP must be made through the aforementioned RFP Coordinator. No other person / State employee is empowered to make binding statements regarding this RFP. Violation of this provision may lead to disqualification from the bidding process, at the State's discretion.

Bidders' Conference: November 20, 2013, 1:30 p.m., Room 500, 5th Floor, Burton M. Cross State Office Building, 111 Sewall Street, Augusta, ME

Deadline for Submitted Questions: November 22, 2013, 5:00 p.m. local time

Proposals Due: December 17, 2013, not later than 2:00 p.m. local time

Submit to:

Division of Purchases Burton M. Cross Building, 111 Sewall Street, 4th Floor 9 State House Station, Augusta ME 04333-0009

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	UCTION	
	se and Background	
	al Provisions	
	ility to Submit Bids	
	act Term er of Awards	
	changes and Addenda	
	ion of Proposals	
	ication of Independent Price Determination	
	rawal of Proposals	
	sition of Proposals	
	cations and Releases	
	sal Evaluation and Award	
	ties	
	cts Between Terms	
	of Preparation of Proposal	
	Release	
2. SCOPE	OF SERVICES	
	ary	
2.2 Techn	ical and Functional Requirements	
2.2.1	Hardware and Software Requirements	
2.2.2	Security Requirements	11
2.2.3	Data Migration and Integration Requirements	12
2,2,4	eCMIS Requirements	12
2.2.5	Accounts Payable Requirements	15
2.2.6	Accounts Receivable Requirements	
2.2.7	Reporting Requirements	
2.2.8	Data Exporting and Interface Requirements	
2.2.9	Training and Documentation Requirements	
	tandards	
2.3.1	Maine Department of Education Data Standards	
2.3.2	Common Education Data Standards (CEDS)	
	n Certification	
	ty, Confidentiality and Auditing	
	ation Software and System Components	
2.7 Owner	ship and Termination or Bankruptcy	
2.7.1	Owned Software	
2.7.2	Licensed Software	
•	t Management and Implementation Plan	
2.8.1	Project Management	
2.8.2	Project Manager	
2.8.3	Project Management and Implementation (Work Plan)	20
2.8.4	Software Development Environments	
2.8.5	Quality Management and Assurance	21
2.8.6	Training	21
2.8.7	Implementation	21
2.9 Techni	ical Support	
2.9.1	Support and Maintenance	22
2.9.2	Documentation	22
2.10 Chang	e Management	22

2.11 Risk and Issue Management	23
2.11.1 Issue Management	23
2.11.2 Risk Management	
2.12 Warranty	
3. KEY RFP EVENTS	
3.1 Timeline of Key RFP Events	
3.2 Bidders Conference	
3.3 Questions	
3.3.1 General Instructions	
3.3.2 Summary of Questions and Answers	
3.4 Submitting the Proposal	
4. PROPOSAL SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS	
4.1 Proposal Format	
4.2 Proposal Contents	
4.2.1 Cover Letter	
4.2.2 Bidder Qualifications	29
4.2.3 Proposed Services	
4.2.4 Work Plans and Timelines	
4.2.5 Project Work Plan	
4.3 Cost Proposal	
4.3.1 General Instructions	
4.4 Economic Impact within the State of Maine	
4.5 Proposal Organization	
5. PROPOSAL EVALUATION AND SELECTION	
5.1 Proposal Evaluation Process	
5.2 Evaluation of Proposals	
5.3 Test and Evaluation	
5.4 Final Scoring	
5.4.1 Scoring	
5.4.2 Selection and Award	36
5.4.3 Appeal of Contract Awards	
6. CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION AND CONDITIONS	
6.1 Contract Document	
6.2 Standard State Agreement Provisions	
7. LIST OF RFP APPENDICES AND RELATED DOCUMENTS	
7.1 Appendix A - Cost Proposal Form	
7.2 Appendix B - Supporting Policy Documents	
7.3 Appendix C - Acronyms	
7.4 Appendix D – Standard Agreement	45

State of Maine Office of Information Technology Child Development Services Early Childhood Intervention Management System RFP # 201309603

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 Purpose and Background

Child Development Services (CDS) is seeking proposals to provide the service for development, hosting, maintenance and support of an Early Childhood Intervention Management System ("eCIMS") as defined in this Request for Proposals (RFP) document. This document provides instructions for submitting proposals, the procedure and criteria by which the Provider(s) will be selected, and the contractual terms which will govern the relationship between CDS and the awarded Bidder(s).

The CDS program provides early childhood intervention services and a Free Appropriate Public Education (FAPE) to children with disabilities from birth through age five in accordance with federal requirements in the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA). The organizational structure, with related roles and responsibilities, for implementing the program is established in Maine statute and is referred to as the CDS System.

The Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) is the federal law under which states provide early intervention and special education and related services to infants, toddlers, and children with disabilities. Part B of IDEA provides for a Free Appropriate Public Education (FAPE) for all eligible children ages 3 - 20 with disabilities. Part C of IDEA provides for early intervention services for children with developmental delays from birth up to 3 years. Maine, like all other states, has chosen to receive the federal funds available for IDEA and, therefore, must comply with specific federal regulations. These regulations include requirements to determine eligibility and provide services to all eligible children within specified timeframes.

The eCIMS will meet the following Federal and State requirements:

- IDEA (see Appendix B Supporting Policy Documents),
- FERPA (see Appendix B Supporting Policy Documents),
- HIPAA (see Appendix B Supporting Policy Documents),
- All IT products and services delivered as part of this Agreement must conform to the State IT Policies, Standards, and Procedures (Maine.Gov/oit/oitpolicies) including, but not limited to:

- Deployment Certification Policy for Major Application Projects (see Appendix B – Supporting Policy Documents),
- Web Standards and Accessibility Policies (see Appendix B Supporting Policy Documents),
- State of Maine Information Technology Security Policy (see Appendix B Supporting Policy Documents),
- State of Maine Remote Hosting Policy (see Appendix B Supporting Policy Documents), and
- All other legislation guiding the CDS system.

The Maine Department of Education is responsible for ensuring Maine complies with the federal IDEA regulations and related requirements as specified in Maine Statue 20-A MRSA Chapter 303 (see Appendix B – Supporting Policy Documents). However, the program is actually implemented, and services are provided, through other entities. Implementation of the Part B program for children ages six through 20 is the responsibility of, and accomplished through, Maine's public schools. The Part B program for children ages three through five and the Part C program for infants and toddlers from birth through age two are implemented through the Child Development Services System. The Maine Department of Education will participate in aspects of eCIMS as necessary and appropriate to achieve the goals of the system.

1.2 General Provisions

- A. Issuance of this RFP does not commit CDS to issue an award or to pay expenses incurred by a Bidder in the preparation of a response to this RFP. This includes attendance at personal interviews or other meetings and software or system demonstrations, where applicable.
- **B.** All proposals should adhere to the instructions and format requirements outlined in this RFP and all written supplements and amendments (such as the Summary of Questions and Answers), issued by CDS. Proposals are to follow the format and respond to all questions and instructions specified below in the "Proposal Submission Requirements and Evaluation" section of this RFP.
- **C.** Bidders shall take careful note that in evaluating a proposal submitted in response to this RFP, CDS will consider materials provided in the proposal, information obtained through interviews/presentations (if any), and internal CDS information of previous contract history with the Bidder (if any). CDS also reserves the right to consider other reliable references and publicly available information available in evaluating a Bidder's experience and capabilities. The proposal shall be signed by a person authorized to legally bind the Bidder and shall contain a statement that the proposal and the pricing contained therein will remain valid and binding for a period of 180 days from the date and time of the bid opening.
- **D.** The RFP and the selected Bidder's proposal, including all appendices or attachments, will be incorporated in the final contract.

- **E.** Following announcement of an award decision, all submissions in response to this RFP will be considered public records available for public inspection pursuant to the State of Maine Freedom of Access Act (FOAA) (1 M.R.S. §§ 401 et seq.). In the event a request is made to produce any proposal, the Department will notify the bidder that the Department will produce the proposal unless the bidder takes steps it deems necessary to prohibit production. The Department will not undertake to determine whether any proposal is confidential or otherwise protected from disclosure.
- F. CDS, at its sole discretion, reserves the right to recognize and waive minor informalities and irregularities found in proposals received in response to this RFP.
- **G.** All applicable laws, whether or not herein contained, shall be included by this reference. It shall be Bidder's responsibility to determine the applicability and requirements of any such laws and to abide by them.

1.3 Eligibility to Submit Bids

Public agencies, private for-profit companies, and non-profit companies and institutions are invited to submit bids in response to this Request for Proposals.

1.4 Contract Term

CDS is seeking a cost-efficient proposal to provide services, as defined in this RFP, for the <u>anticipated</u> contract period defined in the table below. Please note that the dates below are <u>estimated</u> and may be adjusted as necessary in order to comply with all procedural requirements associated with this RFP and the contracting process. The actual contract start date will be established by a completed and approved contract.

Contract Renewal: Following the initial term of the contract, CDS may opt to renew the contract for 3 renewal periods of one year each, subject to continued availability of funding and satisfactory performance.

Period	Start Date	End Date
Initial Period of Performance	3/1/2014	12/31/2014
Renewal Period #1	1/1/2015	12/31/2015
Renewal Period #2	1/1/2016	12/31/2016
Renewal Period #3	1/1/2017	12/31/2017

The term of the anticipated contract, resulting from this RFP, is defined as follows:

1.5 Number of Awards

CDS anticipates making one award as a result of this RFP process.

1.6 RFP Changes and Addenda

In the event it becomes necessary to revise any part of this RFP prior to the scheduled submittal date, an amendment or an addendum shall be issued to all potential bidders who have registered and received this RFP, consistent with any amendment timelines required by the Division of Purchases.

1.7 Rejection of Proposals

CDS reserves the right to accept or reject any part of any proposal, and to accept or reject any or all proposals without penalty for any one of the following reasons:

- a. Failure to include the required Cost Proposal Form signed by an officer of the company submitting the proposal.
- b. Failure to include the Cost Proposal in a separate sealed envelope.
- c. Failure to follow the proposal format instructions as specified.

1.8 Certification of Independent Price Determination

By submission of a response to this RFP, the bidder certifies that in connection with this procurement:

- a. The prices in this proposal have been arrived at independently, without consultation, communication, or agreement for the purpose of restricting competition, as to any matter relating to such prices with any competitor.
- b. Unless otherwise required by law, the prices, which have been quoted in this proposal, have not been knowingly disclosed by any prospective bidder and shall not knowingly be disclosed by the bidder prior to the notice of intent to award, directly or indirectly to any competitor.
- c. No attempt has been made, or shall be made, by a bidder to induce any other person or firm to submit, or not to submit, a proposal for the purpose of restricting competition.
- d. The person signing this proposal certifies that:
 - 1. He/she is the person in the bidder's organization responsible within that organization for the decision as to the prices being offered herein; or
 - 2. He/she is not the person in the bidder's organization responsible within that organization for the decision as to the prices being offered herein, but that he/she has been authorized in writing to act as agent for the persons responsible for such decision.
 - 3. The offer is made by the submitted proposal, and an officer of the offering firm shall sign any clarifications to that proposal or a designated agent empowered to bind the firm in an Agreement.

1.9 Withdrawal of Proposals

Proposals may be withdrawn, modified, and resubmitted at any time prior to the time set for the receipt of proposals.

1.10 Disposition of Proposals

Written proposals submitted in response to this RFP (including the recording and any transcriptions of oral presentations by bidders) become the property of the State, regardless of whether CDS rejects any or all of the proposals. The proposals shall not be returned to bidders, except as specified in this RFP.

1.11 Clarifications and Releases

CDS may, but is not required to, request a bidder to clarify in writing any and all aspects of a proposal; however, bidders will not be allowed to alter or amend their proposals through the clarification process. CDS reserves the right to contact and to discuss a bidder's performance with the bidder's other clients and former clients.

1.12 Proposal Evaluation and Award

All proposals submitted shall be evaluated in accordance with the requirements set forth in Section 5 of this RFP. Any Agreement resulting from this RFP and the subsequent evaluation process shall not necessarily be awarded to the bidder with the lowest price on an individual option basis. Instead, the Agreement shall be awarded to the compliant bidder who has accumulated the most points in accordance with the evaluation criteria outlined in Section 5.

This RFP as well as the successful bidder's response to this RFP, together with all addenda and clarifications shall become part of the contractual obligation and shall be incorporated by reference into the ensuing Agreement with the successful bidder.

1.13 Gratuities

The laws of Maine provide that it is a felony to offer, promise, or give anything of value or benefit to a State employee with the intent to influence that employee's acts, opinion, judgment, or exercise of discretion with respect to that employee's duties. Evidence of violations of this statute will be reported to the appropriate prosecuting attorney.

1.14 Conflicts Between Terms

CDS reserves the right to accept or reject any exception taken by a bidder to the terms and conditions of this RFP. Should a successful bidder take exception to the terms and conditions required by the State, the bidder's exceptions may be rejected and the entire proposal declared non-responsive. These exceptions should be noted conspicuously and noted as exceptions to the RFP. CDS may elect to negotiate with the successful bidder regarding Agreement terms that do not materially alter the substantive requirements of this RFP.

1.15 Maine Statutes and Rules

Maine Department of Administration and Financial Services, Division of Purchases Rules, Chapter 110, sets forth procedures for State of Maine procurement under which this RFP is issued. The terms and conditions of this RFP and the resulting Agreement(s) or activities based upon this RFP shall be construed in accordance with the laws of Maine.

1.16 Costs of Preparation of Proposal

No payments shall be made to cover direct, indirect or associated costs incurred by a prospective or successful bidder in the preparation of its proposal(s) in response to this RFP or any other submission made under this RFP.

1.17 News Release

News releases or other materials made available to the public, a bidder's clients, or potential clients pertaining to this procurement or any part of the proposal shall not be made without the prior written approval of CDS.

.

2. SCOPE OF SERVICES

2.1 Summary

The work as it is defined below will become part of the contract resulting from this procurement, and it will be the responsibility of the successful bidder to ensure that it is performed to completion in accordance with the terms and conditions of the contract.

The bidder must provide a solution for the complete transfer and implementation of a replacement system for the existing student information system known as CASE-E. Services are to include, but not be limited to, analysis, design, development, testing, training and implementation.

The high-level goals of this system are to:

a) Enable users at every level to interact with child data – empowering them to track, trend, analyze, interpret and act quickly, without special data processing;

b) Increase the speed, agility, flexibility, and responsiveness to provide current and future internal, state, and federal data reporting requirements;

c) Create a platform to interact directly with other existing Maine Department of Education systems and future systems;

d) Create a system that allows CDS to be efficient and streamlined – easy access to data, ability to create own reports, intuitive and streamlined navigation;

e) Have enhanced and robust scheduling and time reporting functionality for internal and external service providers; and

f) Create, track and print Individualized Family Service Plan (IFSP's) and Individualized Education Program (IEP's) and related documents.

The system is to be installed and hosted remotely either by the bidder or a third party that the bidder subcontracts. The successful bidder is responsible for the installation and configuration of all software and utilities necessary for a fully operational system. The successful bidder will be responsible for all installation, training and conversion services for CDS. The successful bidder will be responsible for all hardware purchases.

2.2 Technical and Functional Requirements

2.2.1 Hardware and Software Requirements

The eCIMS shall be a web-based browser-based solution compatible with standard Microsoft Windows and Apple Mac operating system browsers. Bidders may offer an existing commercial off-the-shelf (COTS) product.

Identify and describe in detail the hardware and software necessary to install, run, and support the system being proposed including testing and/or training environments. The architecture design should include but not be limited to a narrative and pictorial description of the: web layer, middleware layer, database layer, storage, network and security.

If any component of the proposed system is not compatible with the development and operating environments documented in Section 2.2 of this RFP, the bidder must indicate what additional tools and equipment will be required and include an estimate for the procurement, installation, and support of these tools and equipment. In the event the provider cannot guarantee a (insert date) implementation date, a proposed implementation date is required. CDS is under no obligation to consider a proposal that does not comply with section 4.2.1.2, but may do so at its discretion based on the number and quality of responses.

The system will be hosted remotely with the successful bidder. The State of Maine's Remote Hosting Policy can be viewed at http://maine.gov/oit/policies/Remote-Hosting-Policy.htm.

Any proposed solution must comply with all relevant policy (<u>www.maine.gov/oit/policies</u>) and architecture (<u>www.maine.gov/oit/architecture</u>) specifications. However, any policy or architecture specification that pertains exclusively to local hosting, and is therefore not applicable to remote hosting, may be waived at the discretion of the Chief Information Officer (CIO). Bidders are responsible for detailing specific exemptions they may seek as part of their remote hosting proposals. Bidders are strongly encouraged to be as specific as possible in seeking such exemptions, and in all such cases, the decision of the CIO shall be final and binding.

The successful bidder must include in the RFP proposal all relevant software licenses and agreements. Further, the successful bidder must work under the supervision of State personnel to perform all required testing in support of the Deployment Certification (see Section 2.4) of the proposed solution.

Item #	Requirement	
1	Provide a web-based childhood intervention and management system that may be accessed without the need to install client software. For the purposes of this RFP ActiveX browser components and software plug-ins (e.g., Adobe Reader) are not considered client software for this requirement.	
2	Database Server. Integrate with the Maine Department of Education data systems Microsoft SQL Server databases.	
3	Client Workstations. Accommodate users accessing the system using either laptop or desktop hardware running current supported versions of Microsoft operating system, Apple operating system, Microsoft Office and Internet Explorer and supported versions of Apple Safari and current supported versions of Chrome (PC and Apple).	
4	Network Services. Accommodate users with a minimum 56kBps-based Internet connection.	
5	Data Integrity and Validity. Provide the ability to check data integrity and validity via various cross- referencing field verification checks.	
6	Reduce Redundant Data Entry. Provide the ability to reduce redundant and irrelevant data entry and use forced choice entry techniques where applicable.	

7	Microsoft Office Compatibility. Provide the ability to utilize Microsoft Office 2000 and its evolutionary replacement for spreadsheets, narratives, summaries, and face sheets (detailed history documents).
8	Demonstrate an application architecture and design consistent with current industry best practices and integrate with the current Maine Department of Education infrastructure. The database shall be scalable, hardware independent and support cross platform application operations.
9	Provide software assurance guarantees.
10	Provide an established process for migrating to new software releases.

2.2.2 Security Requirements

The successful bidder will be responsible for ensuring that the solution is thoroughly tested in accordance with the Deployment Certification Policy and undergo all relevant FERPA, HIPPA, and Personal Identifiable Information (PII) certifications through an independent third party assessment. The Deployment Certification Policy tests are available at (<u>http://maine.gov/oit/policies/Application-Deployment-Certification.htm</u>)

The successful bidder will be responsible for supporting the OIT Deployment Certification process. If test results demonstrate deficiencies with the software, the Provider will rectify the deficiencies to the satisfaction of CDS. The system must pass OIT Deployment Certification before the solution can be implemented within the Production Environment.

Item #	Requirement	
1	Provide the ability for web pages to be accessible directly or via a link from the Maine.gov portal.	
2	Provide the ability to timeout a user's screen with automatic timer for security.	
3	Provide the capability of mass security updates.	
4	Provide for the use of Secure Sockets Layer (SSL) encryption initially and Transport Layer Security (TLS) or other forms of comparable Advanced Encryption Standard (AES) encryption, for all transfer of individually identifiable data between client and server.	
5	Provide the ability to do mass updates to groups of users as needed.	
6	Use a consistent security model throughout.	
7	Provide the capability to log into the system.	
8	Require the user's user name and password to log into the system.	
9	Mask the password with asterisks as the user types in the password.	
10	Provide the capability to limit the number of log on failed attempts to three and then direct the user to a page indicating that log on failed.	
11	Provide the ability to restrict access and record all failed and successful security contacts.	
12	Require the user to enter a new password if the old password has expired.	
13	Provide the capability to notify the user if the user name or password is not valid.	
14	Have the ability to build individual security profiles that users would be associated with, rather than each individual having its own set of permissions.	
15	Provide the capability to add, change, or delete roles.	
16	Provide the capability to associate roles with a user.	

17	 Provide the capability to assign a role to an application area using a security setting of: No access (NA); Read only (R); Edit/Read (ER); Edit/Add/Read (EAR); and Edit/Add/Read/Delete (EARD).
18	Provide the capability of the System Administrator role to add, change, delete page controls (i.e. fields, checkboxes, approval buttons, etc.) for each page.
19	Provide the ability to copy a role and its defined access rights.
20	Provide the ability for non-CDS users to access the system based on their rights and roles. Examples of non-CDS users are, but not limited to: contracted services providers, child parents and/or guardians, auditors, State and local administrators.
21	Provide the capability to define the SMTP (Simple Message Transport Protocol) server user account and password that shall be used for email notifications.
22	Provide the capability for users to control who has access to results of queries.
23	Provide the ability to maintain an audit trail of transactions made in the eCMIS, identifying who made the change, the type of change made, and the date / time the change was made. This shall be accomplished for adds, deletes and edits. This shall include all security maintenance transactions. Both a before and after image of data changes shall be captured in order to record the specific data elements that were modified.

2.2.3 Data Migration and Integration Requirements

The eCMIS shall provide the capability to migrate data from the existing legacy CDS system and integrate with the Education Data Warehouse and other external data sources. The successful bidder will analyze current database tables and data elements within the legacy CDS system and will create a Migration Plan that is aimed at migrating required data elements to the proposed system. The Migration Plan will also include a plan for populating required data elements that will not be addressed by the migration of data from the legacy CDS system. Unless specified otherwise within the Migration Plan, the successful bidder will be required to provide all tools, equipment, materials, and resources necessary to effectively perform the required work tasks.

Item #	Requirement
1	Provide the ability to migrate data from the legacy CDS CASE-E system (Microsoft SQL Server 2005 backend).
2	Provide the ability to migrate data from the CDS Microsoft Dynamics GP (Great Plains Software) Version 2010 and PeakKnowlede software financial systems.
3	Provide the ability for the eCMIS to receive and display data from disparate internal and external data sources.
4	Provide the ability to receive and store the State Student Identifier from Infinite Campus State Edition.

2.2.4 eCMIS Requirements

ltem #	Requiremen	it in the second s
1	Provide the ability to collect all child mailing address field	S.

2	Provide the ability for users to view list of Active Child Development Regional sites (cost centers) they serve.
3	Provide the ability for users to view list of Children in a "site" and their identification information.
4	Provide the ability to collect all child details (information identifying the child).
5	Provide the ability to log activity details regarding the child.
6	Provide the ability to collect parent details (names and addresses of parents and guardians).
7	Provide the ability to collect address details (residence address of child and guardians)
8	Provide the ability to collect CDS details (information of case manager assigned to a child, Part C or Part B Eligibility Determination date etc.).
9	Provide the ability to list intake referrals received for a child.
10	Provide the ability to collect intake referral details (referred by, date, reason, etc.).
11	Provide the ability to list screenings done for a child.
12	Provide the ability to collect screening details (method, cost, notes etc.).
13	Provide the ability to collect screener details (screening type, provider etc.).
14	Provide the ability to collect list of evaluations done for a child.
15	Provide the ability to list evaluators and their information.
16	Provide the ability to collect evaluation details (evaluation method, cost, date etc.).
17	Provide the ability to list team meetings held for a child's case.
18	Provide the ability to list participants in a meeting for a child's case.
19	Provide the ability to collect details of a meeting held for a child's case (reason for meeting, recommendations, follow-up date etc.).
20	Provide the ability to list plans written for a child (e.g., plan date, close date, amendment start date, amendment end date, type of plan, etc.).
21	Provide the ability to collect details of a plan (e.g., close date, close reason, plan type (IFSP or IEP)).
22	Provide the ability to collect progress reports (list of progress reports for a plan for a child. (e.g., report number, due date, date received, comments, notes etc.).
23	Provide the ability to collect plan services (list of services for a plan for a child – e.g., name of service, provider name, start date, end date, frequency-intensity etc.).
24	Provide the ability to collect service details (details of a service listed in the plan for a child – e.g., billing code, cost per hour etc.).
25	Provide the ability for designated users to be able to view for a child, the list of services and the respective pay sources.
26	Provide the ability to collect insurance (list of insurances listed for the child – e.g., insurance name, insurance type, policy number, eligibility date etc.).
27	Provide the ability to collect insurance details (details of each insurance listed on the child's record – e.g., policy holder first name, last name, eligibility date, expiration date etc.).
28	Provide the ability to collect insurance periods (e.g., period start, period end).

29	Provide the ability to view list of providers associated with the site (e.g., provider ID, provider name,
30	If provider is an agency or not, office or agency name). Provide the ability to enter the contact details for CDS Staff. (e.g., case manager ID, last name, first
30	name, email, active/inactive, certification type, certification end date etc.).
31	Provide the ability to collect provider addresses (address of a provider associated with the site (cost center)).
32	Provide the ability to collect details of a provider associated with the site (cost center) (e.g., Federal Tax ID, Medicaid #, provider type etc.).
33	Provide the ability to collect provider calling information (e.g., phone number, email etc.).
34	Provide the ability to list all contracts associated with all sites (e.g., contract ID, site name, contract name etc.).
35	Provide the ability to collect details of contract service rates (e.g., dollars/unit, specialty, start date, end date etc.).
36	Provide the ability to collect contract evaluation rates (details of contracts that conduct evaluations – e.g., evaluation type, dollars/unit, start date, end date etc.).
37	Provide the ability to collect contract team rates (details of contracts that provide members for team meetings – e.g., team type, specialty, dollars/unit, start date, end date etc.).
38	Provide the ability to collect contract screening rates (details of contracts that conduct screenings – e.g., screening type, specialty, dollars/unit, start date, end date, etc.).
39	Provide the ability to collect details of contract providers by site (e.g., provider name, office or agency name, etc.).
40	Provide the ability to collect details of a contract (e.g., start date, end date, address, contract administrator details, contracted provider information, etc.).
41	Provide the ability to collect details of contracted providers by site (e.g., name of contracted provider, site(s) they are associated with).
42	Provide the ability to collect details of CDS Employees by site (e.g., name of CDS employee, site they are associated with).
43	Provide the ability to enter details of the contract of a provider (e.g., contract start date, contract end date, site servicing etc.).
44	Provide the ability to collect details of a contract invoice (e.g., invoice ID, invoice number, status, etc.).
45	Provide the ability to view list of saved queries so they can be reused at later times.
46	Provide the ability for the user, based on their level of access, to do an Ad-hoc query by checking few or all fields from a list of fields (e.g., number of screenings, evaluations called, evaluations scheduled, evaluations, evaluation reports, etc.).
47	Provide the ability for contract providers to enter child related notes into the system.
48	Provide the ability for direct service staff to enter child related notes into the system.
49	Provide the ability to auto populate information across the entire system. Users should not have to enter the same information twice.
50	Provide the ability for designated users to enter an IFSP plan and related documents for a child.

51	Provide the ability for designated users to enter an IEP plan and related documents for a child.
52	Provide the ability for designated users to work on concurrent plans at the same time for a given child with only one plan in active state.
53	Provide the ability to transfer a child and pertaining information from one site to another.
54	Provide the ability to identify and manage the workflow for onboarding a child into the CDS program (e.g., referral, screening, evaluation, plan development, etc.).
55	Provide the ability to copy a child's plan.
56	Provide the ability to do global updates to staff or contract service providers.
57	Provide the ability to identify the amount of co-pay applied using State defined rules.
58	Provide the ability to identify the amount of services co-pay applied using State defined rules.
59	Provide the ability to set provider rates based on authorized level of services.
60	Provide the ability to input MaineCare or third-party rates and apply limitations for services not to exceed those rates.
61	Provide the ability to maintain information that allow services to be manually or automatically priced according to State defined rates and effective dates.
62	Provide the ability to restrict payment for services as defined by child plan or State policy.

2.2.5 Accounts Payable Requirements

ltem #	Requirement	
1	Provide the ability to communicate with Microsoft Dynamics GP Version 2010 (Great Plains Accounting Software) and PeakKnowledge financial software.	
2	Provide the ability for CDS direct service employees to create invoices for the services to the children.	
3	Provide the ability for contract providers to create invoices for the services to the children.	
4	Provide the ability for parents of the child to fill travel reimbursement form on the system.	
5	Provide the ability for A/P staff to access the history of invoices billed by provider and by child.	
6	Provide the ability for validation to ensure consistent data entry.	
7	Provide the ability for A/P to communicate with A/R portion of the system.	
8	Provide the ability for the same data to populate across the entire system. In other words, no double entry of data.	
9	Provide the ability for A/P staff to pick any child and enter all A/P related information pertaining to that child's case.	
10	Provide the ability to streamline contracts/rates with consistent description.	
11	Provide the ability for details of invoices paid to be available in the system. Invoices processing occurs within Microsoft Dynamics GP.	
12	Provide the ability for CDS direct service employees to complete the 'employee mileage	

	reimbursement' form on the system.	
13	Provide the ability for site level employees to fill in the invoices for administrative bills at the site on the system, if they are intended for a specific child (e.g., assistive technology).	
14	Provide the ability for A/P processors to enter the provider invoices onto the system.	
15	Provide the ability for A/P processors to search for any child.	
16	Provide the ability for A/P processors to view all child history.	
17	Provide the ability for A/P processors to look up a provider's name and view a list of all children the provider is associated with.	
18	Provide the ability for services invoiced for the child to align with the child's plan and raise flags if there are discrepancies.	
19	Provide the ability to view by status all invoices processed.	
20	Provide the ability for site directors to have access to all child A/P information associated with their site.	

2.2.6 Accounts Receivable Requirements

ltem #	Requirement	
1	Provide the ability for the accounts receivable (A/R) module of the system to communicate with Microsoft Dynamics GP Version 2010 (Great Plains Accounting Software) and PeakKnowledge software.	
2	Provide the ability for CDS to invoice the commercial insurance electronically.	
3	Provide the ability for the system to check if the child is eligible for MaineCare.	
4	Provide the ability for the system to invoice MaineCare for services provided to the child.	
5	Provide the ability for the system to receive the electronic remittance advice file from MaineCare once the invoices are processed.	
6	Provide the ability for the system to allow CDS to create an invoice for commercial insurance and print CMS1500.	
7	Provide the ability for the accounts receivable specialist to identify the account the invoices will be paid from.	
8	Provide the ability for accounts receivable staff to keep track of the cost absorbed by CDS if MaineCare or commercial insurance cannot be billed for a service.	
9	Provide the ability for the system to process the file that comes from MaineCare after MaineCare processes the invoices, and send it to Microsoft Dynamics GP and PeakKnowledge software.	
10	Provide the ability for the system to separate and bucket invoices into MaineCare, commercial and CDS pay.	
11	Provide the ability for the new system to communicate with the current accounts receivable software and transfer over the child information so accounts receivable does not have to reenter it in the accounts receivable software again.	

2.2.7 Reporting Requirements

ltem #	Requirement	
1	Part C State Performance Plan indicators 1, 2, 3, 5,6,7,8 (ABC).	
2	Part B State Performance Plan indicators 6, 7, 11, 12.	
3	General supervision. (Relates to all OSEP indicators but particularly 9-13, Part C and Part B(619) 15-20.	
4	Child Outcome summary report Individual and OSEP aggregate.	
5	Provide the ability for CDS staff to create, run, print and save ad-hoc queries and reports.	
6	Provide the ability to create mailing labels.	
7	Provide the ability to create the Annual Child Count Report.	

2.2.8 Data Exporting and Interface Requirements

Item #	Requirement	
1	Provide the ability to export data in a variety of standard formats (e.g., xls, csv, xml, txt, rtf, pdf) that can be integrated with other data systems.	
2	Provide the ability for CDS users to export data in a variety of standard formats (e.g., xls, csv, xml, txt, rtf, pdf) that can be integrated with other information available at the CDS level. Security requirements shall certify that CDS staff only has access to the appropriate data.	
3	Provide the ability to import and export data to and from third party software.	
4	Provide the ability to support data integration and data sharing with State and third-party applications using industry standard protocols.	
5	Provide the ability to receive, accept, store and/or modify data from a variety of possible sources, such as scanning, keyboard entry, archived records, and external sources such as the Web.	
6	Provide the ability to store specified export routines for later use and modification.	
7	Provide the ability to import and store the unique State Student Identifier from Infinite Campus State Edition.	
8	Provide the ability to export child identifying data in .csv format to Infinite Campus State Edition to retrieve or create State Student Identifiers.	
9	Provide the ability to import and export financial data to Microsoft Dynamics GP and PeakKnowlege accounting software.	
10	Provide the ability to export eCIMS data tables in flat file format to the Statewide Longitudinal Data System (Microsoft SQL Server backend).	

2.2.9 Training and Documentation Requirements

CDS will require training and support to CDS personnel and other stakeholders to ensure successful implementation and utilization of the eCIMS.

Item #	Requirement	
1	 Provide up to two weeks of system administration training to CDS personnel. The training should include at a minimum: Managing security and user access; Maintaining and supporting the eCIMS; Creating, publishing and managing content; Creating and managing workflow processes; Exporting and importing data; and Maintaining and updating training and online help documentation. 	
2	Provide up to four weeks of end-user/stakeholder training utilizing: instructor-led classes, live web classes, and recorded web classes. Training should include at a minimum: • Using/navigating the eCIMS by; o State-level employees; o Site directors and employees; o CDS direct service employees; o Contract providers; and o Parents/Guardians.	
3	Provide context-sensitive online help for system administration users and end-users.	
4	Provide electronic copies of all system administration and end-user training materials in Word and PDF formats.	
5	Provide the ability to meet the State of Maine standards for technical and program documentation.	
6	Provide to CDS electronic copies of all necessary documentation to facilitate ongoing maintenance of the system after implementation.	
7	Provide to CDS attendee lists for all on-site and online training sessions.	

2.3 Data Standards

2.3.1 Maine Department of Education Data Standards

The bidder shall make every effort to adhere to or crosswalk to Maine Department of Education data standards for identifying children and staff/providers in the eCMIS. The links below are current and are subject to change.

http://www.maine.gov/education/medms/Schemas/StudentDataDictionary08102010.htm http://www.maine.gov/education/medms/standards/index.htm

2.3.2 Common Education Data Standards (CEDS)

The bidder should make every effort to align with CEDS early learning data standards. This will facilitate the alignment of CDS data with K-12 data systems and Statewide Longitudinal Data System.

2.4 System Certification

The system will undergo a full certification process as outline by the State of Maine, Office of Information Technology. The process will follow the policies and procedures that are published at time of certification. The links listed below are current and are subject to change.

http://www.maine.gov/oit/policies/OIT_App_Deployment_Certification_Guidelines.htm http://www.maine.gov/oit/policies/AppDeployCert.htm

2.5 Security, Confidentiality and Auditing

The bidder shall deliver systems and services that are compliant the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) and Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA).

In addition, the bidder will ensure compliance with all HIPAA/FERPA requirements across all systems and services related to this procurement, including transaction, common identified, and privacy and security standards, by the effective date of those rules and regulations. The bidder will comply with the rules and regulations, and will implement these rules and regulations so as to achieve consistency in data collection, validation, storage, retrieval, and consolidation with all CDS's programs.

To the extent the bidder is considered a Business Associate under HIPAA; the bidder shall execute and deliver in form acceptable to CDS a Business Associates agreement (BA agreement). The terms of the BA agreement shall be incorporated into the Agreement by reference. CDS shall have recourse to such remedies as are provided for in the Agreement for breach of contract, in the event the bidder either fails to execute and deliver such BA agreement to CDS or fails to adhere to the terms of the BA agreement.

2.6 Application Software and System Components

The successful bidder will provide, house, install, configure, and customize all application software and system components necessary to satisfy the requirements specified within this RFP. All associated licenses, including a copy of the agreements, will be provided by the successful bidder. CDS and CDS staff will participate in all aspects of the stated tasks as appropriate, for the purposes of knowledge transfer. As part of this knowledge transfer, the successful bidder will provide written installation and configuration documentation for the application software and system components.

2.7 Ownership and Termination or Bankruptcy

2.7.1 Owned Software

Unless otherwise indicated, The State of Maine will retain all ownership of any documentation, source code, and all other work completed at the time of termination. This shall include the return of data in a readable format by an approved application. Transfer will be made at no additional cost to the state.

2.7.2 Licensed Software

Unless otherwise indicated, The State of Maine will retain all ownership of any documentation and all other work completed at the time of termination. This shall include the return of data in a readable format by an approved application. Transfer will

be made at no additional cost to the state. Each deliverable shall follow the methodology as if it was an independent project.

2.8 Project Management and Implementation Plan

2.8.1 Project Management

The successful bidder will be required to utilize a formalized approach to project management which, at a minimum, will be compliant with the Project Management Institute (PMI).

2.8.2 Project Manager

The successful bidder will be required to assign an experienced project manager to the project. It is required that the successful bidder's Project Manager be knowledgeable with the bidder's proposed solution. It is desired that the successful bidder's Project Manager be PMP certified. The successful bidder's Project Manager will be responsible for the successful completion of all work tasks as defined within the project work plan and will work under the direction of the state's Project Manager.

2.8.3 Project Management and Implementation (Work Plan)

The Bidder must structure and follow a project management approach for planning, organizing, and managing the staff and activities throughout the life of the project. The Bidder's project management approach must facilitate open and timely communication with the State and a strong working relationship to achieve the overall goal of completed system design performance that meets or exceeds user needs on time and within budget.

The successful bidder's Project Manager will be required to maintain a detailed project work plan, with content to be approved by the State Project Manager, through the full term of the contract. The successful bidder's Project Manager will be required to submit an updated work plan to the State's Project Manager on a date and time that will be determined during contract negotiations. The work plan will be incorporated into the contract between the state and the successful bidder and will be made a part thereof. The work plan will be created and maintained with an automated project management tool (e.g. Microsoft Project) and will include appropriate detail to provide project status, dependencies and risk/mitigations.

The project work plan will be updated and submitted to the state's Project Manager on a bi-weekly basis or at an alternative period of time that is formally specified and agreed to in writing by the state's Project Manager.

2.8.4 Software Development Environments

An Environment is defined as a collection of hardware, software, network communications, and procedures that work together to provide a discrete type of computer service. An environment has unique features and characteristics that dictate how they are administered. The successful bidder shall provide at minimum 3 development environments through the project lifecycle. They are:

- User Acceptance
- Training
- Production

2.8.5 Quality Management and Assurance

Project Quality Management ensures that the project satisfies the needs for which it was undertaken.

The successful bidder must develop a plan for the overall system and user acceptance testing.

Prior to moving the solution to the Production Environment, the successful bidder will test all aspects of the solution in accordance with the State's Deployment Certification Policy for Major Application Projects. The successful bidder in cooperation with the state will create a test plan to accomplish application and system performance testing, network performance testing, security & vulnerability assessment and penetration testing, and all other types of testing in accordance with providing and operating a fully certified system. The Bidder is responsible for and must certify their system to be fully secure for all work provided under this procurement.

The successful bidder will be responsible for scheduling and coordinating all testing activities to ensure that each of the tests are prepared for and performed in accordance with the test plan. The successful bidder will appropriately train state personnel as appropriate to participate in the testing effort. Unless specified otherwise within the test plan, the successful bidder will be required to provide all tools, testing materials, and resources necessary to effectively perform the required tests.

2.8.6 Training

The bidder will be required to provide a training plan. The training plan will be reviewed and approved in accordance with the Deliverable Submission and Review procedure defined within Section 5. The successful bidder will be responsible for scheduling, coordinating, and delivering all training in accordance with the plan.

2.8.7 Implementation

The successful bidder will implement the solution within a production environment. The successful bidder will be required to create a plan to accomplish the implementation.

The successful bidder will be required to perform an application and network performance test, and a security and vulnerability assessment and penetration test within the production environment before the application goes live to assure that issues raised during the testing phase have been resolved and that no new issues have been introduced. The successful bidder will be responsible for scheduling and coordinating all activities to ensure that the implementation is performed in accordance with the plan. Additionally, the successful bidder will be responsible for providing all technical and functional documentation that will be required to assist the state in using and supporting the implemented solution.

2.9 Technical Support

The Bidder will provide a system user focused Help Desk function. The mission of the Help Desk will be to answer questions and address concerns of users to ensure that future interactions with the members and community will be successful.

2.9.1 Support and Maintenance

The successful bidder will provide support and maintenance for the solution to begin immediately after receiving the State of Maine's official acceptance of the implemented solution.

As part of the support, the successful bidder will address all questions and reported problems related to the technical and functional operation of the system. The successful bidder must provide toll-free telephone support during regular business hours: 7:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. local time (Augusta). A qualified technician will respond via phone to address all calls in accordance with the importance and criticality of the question being asked and/or the problem being reported. The successful bidder will agree to provide on-site technical support within one business day for problems that cannot be resolved via telephone.

2.9.2 Documentation

Documentation will include any standard product documentation and documentation of additional configuration and customization required by the RFP. All documentation will be provided in accordance with the terms and conditions specified within this RFP.

2.10 Change Management

The successful bidder's Project Manager will be required to formally document and track all changes to the functional design, technical design, and/or to approved deliverables. For each potential change, the successful bidder's Project Manager will work closely with the state's Project Manager to define and document the change, its benefits, and if necessary, its impact to the project schedule and budget. No work associated with a documented change will begin without first receiving written authorization from the state's Project Manager. The bidder shall deliver release notes which will describe the scope and impact of each change that will occur to the application prior to approval by CDS.

2.11 Risk and Issue Management

2.11.1 Issue Management

The successful bidder's Project Manager will be required to formally document and track all issues that threaten the project schedule and budget. For each issue identified, the successful bidder's Project Manager will work closely with the state's Project Manager to clearly document the issue. At a minimum, the resulting document must clearly reflect the details related to the issue, the potential impact to the project schedule and budget if the issue is not resolved, options and a recommendation for resolving the issue, a date by which the issue must be resolved, the entity responsible for resolving the issue, and the final approved resolution.

2.11.2 Risk Management

The successful bidder's Project Manager will be required to formally document and track project risks and mitigation strategies throughout the life of the project. In the early stages of the project, the successful bidder's Project Manager will be required to provide a risk management plan that will include but not be limited to the following for all project risks:

- Description of the identified risk
- Description of the potential impact to the project
- Impact rating (e.g. High, Medium, Low)
- Likelihood of occurrence (e.g. High, Medium, Low)
- Description of risk mitigation plan
- Approved mitigation plan

The risk management plan will clearly indicate the priority for addressing the risks defined. The successful bidder will be required to provide the initial risk management plan within the initial work plan. From that point forward, the successful bidder's Project Manager will be required to present an updated risk management plan on a periodic basis throughout the life of the project. The timeline for delivering an updated risk management plan will be defined in writing and approved by the state's Project Manager immediately after delivery of the initial risk management plan.

2.12 Warranty

The bidder must provide a warranty for services performed of at least one year on the system and all products provided by the bidder. The warranty period begins when CDS has accepted the delivery of the system, and shall cover the diagnosis and fixing of all system features and functions that do not operate as stated in this RFP and in the bidder's documentation.

The bidder must also provide a warranty that the software used to implement the system proposed is bug free for a period of one year after the product is delivered in final form or until CDS enters into an Agreement with another vendor for further modifications of the

software, whichever is shorter. This means that once the software is delivered, the bidder must be willing to fix, at no charge to CDS, any faults the software may exhibit for a period of one year.

The warranty will encompass correction of defective software, functionality, and procedures that were considered to be within the scope of this procurement at no additional cost to the state.

System acceptance of the solution will occur following system implementation and Bidder's demonstration that the system successfully provides all the functionality required by CDS; the system meets or exceeds the performance standards in the contract; the system meets HIPAA and FERPA requirements.

3. KEY RFP EVENTS

3.1 Timeline of Key RFP Events

Event Name	Event Date and Time
Bidders' Conference	November 20, 2013 at 1:30pm, local time
Due Date for Receipt of Written Questions	November 22, 2013 at 5:00pm, local time
Due Date for Receipt of Proposals	December 17, 2013 at 2:00pm, local time
Estimated Contract Start Date (subject to change)	March 1, 2014

3.2 Bidders Conference

CDS will sponsor a Bidders' Conference concerning this RFP beginning at the date and time shown in the timeline above. The Bidders' Conference will be held in Room 500, 5th Floor, Burton M. Cross State Office Building, 111 Sewall Street, Augusta, ME 04333.

The purpose of the Bidders' Conference is to answer and/or field questions, clarify for potential Bidders any aspect of the RFP requirements that may be necessary and provide supplemental information to assist potential Bidders in submitting responses to the RFP. Although attendance at the Bidders' Conference is not mandatory, it is *strongly encouraged* that interested Bidders attend.

3.3 Questions

3.3.1 General Instructions

- a. It is the responsibility of each Bidder to examine the entire RFP and to seek clarification in writing if the Bidder does not understand any information or instructions.
- b. Questions regarding the RFP must be submitted in writing and received by the RFP Coordinator listed on the cover page of this RFP document as soon as possible but no later than the date and time specified in the timeline above.
- c. Questions may be submitted by e-mail. CDS assumes no liability for assuring accurate/complete e-mail transmission and receipt.
- d. Include a heading with the RFP Number and Title. Be sure to refer to the page number and paragraph within this RFP relevant to the question presented for clarification, if applicable.

3.3.2 Summary of Questions and Answers

Responses to all substantive and relevant questions will be compiled in writing and distributed to all registered, interested persons by e-mail <u>no later than seven (7) calendar</u> <u>days</u> prior to the proposal due date. <u>Only those answers issued in writing by the RFP</u> <u>Coordinator will be considered binding</u>. CDS reserves the right to answer or not answer any question received.

3.4 Submitting the Proposal

3.4.1 Proposals due: Proposals must be received <u>no later than</u> **2:00 p.m. local time**, on the date listed in the timeline above, at which point they will be opened. <u>Proposals received</u> <u>after the 2:00 p.m. deadline will be rejected without exception</u>.

3.4.2 Mailing/Delivery Instructions

PLEASE NOTE: The proposals are <u>not</u> to be submitted to the RFP Coordinator at the requesting Department. <u>The official delivery site is the State of Maine Division of</u> <u>Purchases</u> (address shown below).

- a. <u>Only proposals received at the official delivery site prior to the stated deadline will be considered.</u> Bidders submitting proposals are responsible for allowing adequate time for delivery. <u>Proposals received after the 2:00 p.m. deadline will be rejected without exception.</u> Postmarks do not count and fax or electronic mail transmissions of proposals are not permitted unless expressly stated in this RFP. Any method of hardcopy delivery is acceptable, such as US Mail, in-person delivery by Bidder, or use of private courier services.
- b. The "Official Proposal" containing the signed, original response to this RFP and Ten (10) paper copies, as well as one copy in electronic format using Microsoft Word shall be delivered in sealed package(s) no later than 2:00 pm on December 17, 2013. The Technical Proposals and general information shall be sealed in one envelope and one (1) copy of the Cost Proposal shall be sealed in a separate envelope. The entire package, containing all required response forms and other required information should be submitted together.
- c. Address each package as follows (and be sure to include the Bidder's full business name and address as well as the RFP number and title):

Bidder Name/Return Address

Division of Purchases Burton M. Cross Building, 4th Floor 111 Sewall Street 9 State House Station Augusta ME 04333-0009

Re: RFP 201390603

4. PROPOSAL SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS

This section contains instructions for Bidders to use in preparing their proposals. The Bidder's proposal must follow the outline used below, including the numbering and section and subsection headings as they appear here. Failure to use the outline specified in this section or to respond to all questions and instructions throughout this document may result in the proposal being disqualified as non-responsive or receiving a reduced score. <u>CDS and its evaluation team for this RFP have sole discretion to determine whether a variance from the RFP specifications should result in either disqualification or reduction in scoring of a proposal. Rephrasing of the content provided in this RFP will, at best, be considered minimally responsive. CDS seeks detailed yet succinct responses that demonstrate the Bidder's experience and ability to perform the requirements specified throughout this document.</u>

4.1 Proposal Format

- 1. For clarity, the proposal should be typed or printed. Proposals should be single-spaced with 1" margins on white 8 ½" x 11" paper using a font no smaller than 12 point Times New Roman or similar.
- 2. All pages should be numbered consecutively beginning with number 1 on the first page of the narrative (this does not include the cover page or table of contents pages) through to the end, including all forms and attachments. For clarity, the Bidder's name should appear on every page, including Attachments. Each Attachment must reference the section or subsection number to which it corresponds.
- **3.** Bidders are asked to be brief and to respond to each question and instruction listed in the "Proposal Submission Requirements" section of this RFP. Number each response in the proposal to correspond to the relevant requirement or instruction of the RFP.
- 4. Additional materials beyond those specified in the RFP will not be considered part of the proposal and will not be evaluated.
- 5. Include any forms provided in the application package or reproduce those forms as closely as possible. All information should be presented in the same order and format as described in the RFP.
- 6. It is the responsibility of the Bidder to provide all information requested in the RFP package at the time of submission. Failure to provide information requested in this RFP may, at the discretion of CDS's evaluation review team, result in a lower rating for the incomplete sections and may result in the proposal being disqualified for consideration.

4.2 Proposal Contents

4.2.1 Cover Letter

Provide a cover letter to the proposal that includes the following:

4.2.1.1 Name and Address

Provide the name and address of the prime bidder. Names and addresses of all subcontracted providers must also be included.

4.2.1.2 Guarantee

Provide a statement guaranteeing that the bidder can and will meet the <date>, implementation date for the project.

4.2.1.3 Signature

Provide a signature and title, in the cover letter, of the person empowered to bind the prime bidder.

4.2.2 Bidder Qualifications

4.2.2.1 Description of the Organization

Present a detailed statement of qualifications and summary of relevant experience. If subcontractors are to be used, provide a list that specifies the name, address, phone number, contact person, and a brief description of the subcontractors' organizational capacity and qualifications.

4.2.2.2 Organizational Description and Qualifications

Location of the corporate headquarters - Also, describe the current or proposed location where services will be provided or from which the contract will be managed.

4.2.2.3 Organizational Experience

Briefly describe the history of the Bidder's organization, especially regarding skills pertinent to the specific work required by the RFP and any special or unique characteristics of the organization which would make it especially qualified to perform the required work activities. Include similar information for any subcontractors.

4.2.2.4 Description of Experience with Similar Projects

- a. Provide a description of three projects that occurred within the past five years which reflect experience and expertise needed in performing the functions described in the "Scope of Services" portion of this RFP. For each of the three examples provided, a contact person from the client organization involved should be listed, along with that person's telephone number. Please note that contract history with the State of Maine, whether positive or negative, may be considered in rating proposals even if not provided by the Bidder.
- b. If the Bidder has not provided similar services, note this, and describe experience with projects that highlight the Bidder's general capabilities.
- c. If the bidder is proposing a Commercial Off-the-Shelf (COTS) package provide a detailed narrative of the Bidder's experience with the offered product and/or experience in the last three years providing application services remotely to customers.

4.2.2.5 Knowledge of the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA)

Provide a summary of any work experience in either Part B or Part C of the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act.

4.2.2.6 Project Commitment

Describe the current project commitment, and the total number of full-time employees being dedicated to this project.

4.2.2.7 Bidder Staff Qualifications

The bidder must commit dedicated, skilled personnel to CDS to provide professional services. CDS shall retain the right to reject any of the Provider's employees whose qualifications, in the reasonable, good faith judgment of CDS, do not meet the standards established by CDS as necessary for the performance of the Agreement. During the course of the Agreement, CDS reserves the right to require the Provider to reassign or otherwise remove any Provider employees found unacceptable by CDS. The bidder must provide a completed list of qualified employees and/or subcontractors who will work on this project, and an outline of the structure of the team and the names of specific key employees that will be assigned to work on this project. Bidder staff qualifications must be completed and submitted with the proposal. Failure to do so will result in a bidder losing points in the scoring process.

4.2.2.8 Client References

Provide a comprehensive list of clients, including contact information, for whom the bidder has provided similar services within the last three (3) years; include the dates when services were provided. CDS may contact clients from the list as references for the bidder.

4.2.2.9 Financial Responsibility

Provide financial documentation as evidence of adequate financial stability. In the event a bidder is either substantially or wholly owned by another corporate entity, the bidder must also include the most recent detailed financial report of the parent organization and a statement that the parent organization will unconditionally guarantee performance by the bidder on each and every term, covenant, and condition of such Agreement as may be executed by the parties. Any proposed subcontractors, whose percentage of work to be performed (measured as percentage of total Agreement price) equals or exceeds 20 percent, must submit the required information also.

4.2.2.10 Financial Stability

One of two responses is required in this subsection, depending upon whether the firm is publicly held (Section 4.2.2.10.1) or not (Section 4.2.2.10.2). Additionally, all proposals must include a response to the requirements of Section 4.2.2.10.3.

4.2.2.10.1 Publicly Held

If the bidder is a publicly held corporation, enclose a copy of the corporation's most recent audited financial reports and financial statements and the name, address and telephone number of a responsible representative of the bidder's principal financial or banking organization. The bidder must also disclose any and all judgments, pending or expected litigation, or other real or potential financial reversals that might materially affect the viability or stability of the organization; or warrant that

no such condition is known to exist.

4.2.2.10.2 Not Publicly Held

If the bidder is not a publicly held corporation, the bidder may either comply with the preceding subsection or:

- a. Describe the organization, including size, longevity, client base, areas of specialization and expertise, and any other pertinent information in such a manner that the Evaluation Committee may reasonably formulate a determination about the stability and financial strength of the organization;
- b. Provide a banking reference;
- c. If available, provide a complete Dunn and Bradstreet credit report dated not more than thirty (30) days prior to the proposal submission; and
- d. Disclose any and all judgments, pending or expected litigation, or other real or potential financial reversals that might materially affect the viability or stability of the bidding organization; or warrant that no such condition is known to exist.

4.2.2.10.3 Change in Ownership

If any change in ownership or control of the company is anticipated during the twelve (12) months following the proposal due date, describe the circumstances of such change and indicate when the change will likely occur.

4.2.3 Proposed Services

Submit a technical proposal explaining how the bidder will meet all requirements detailed in Section 2 of this RFP. Proposed solutions must be correlated, by number, to the appropriate sections outlined in Section 2. Give particular attention to describing the methods and resources you will use and how you will accomplish the tasks involved. If subcontractors are involved, clearly identify the work each will perform.

4.2.4 Work Plans and Timelines

Provide a description of how the bidder plans to interact with CDS staff and bidder requirements of CDS. The bidder will submit a Project Work Plan that clearly reflects how the work outlined within Section 2, Technical and Functional Requirements, will be accomplished. The Project Work Plan should identify full implementation of the proposed solution to be complete on or before December 31, 2013. It is the expectation that by December 31, 2013 all CDS staff will be fully trained and using the implemented solution. In support of the Project Work Plan, the bidder will include a narrative description explaining in detail the approach that will be taken to perform all work as reflected within the Project Work Plan. Deliverables and project milestones must be clearly highlighted within the description that is provided. The various roles and responsibilities of the primary bidder and all other parties including the State must be clearly identified and articulated.

When preparing the Project Work Plan, please take into account the following assumption. Allow 38-52 work days after code freeze for Maine OIT Deployment Certification testing related to the technical architecture.

4.2.5 Project Work Plan

Provide a work plan outlining the steps being taken in each category:

• Design, Development, Implementation, Acceptance Testing and Production Cutover and Stabilization

The work plan must include:

- The steps required;
- Detailed descriptions of the deliverables in each step;
- The level of effort for each deliverable;
- Proposed time frames;
- Bidder staff requirements;
- CDS staff requirements including skill levels required, and time commitments to accomplish a successful implementation of the system, including conversion of CDS data, customizations, testing and go-live needed to meet CDS business needs; and
- How the bidder will provide the necessary interaction with CDS staff to help modify workflows around the proposed system and define and implement required enhancements.

4.3 Cost Proposal

4.3.1 General Instructions

- a. The Bidder must submit a cost proposal that covers the entire period of the contract, including any optional renewal periods. Please use the expected contract start date of March 1, 2014 and an end date of December 31, 2017 in preparing this section.
- b. The cost proposal shall include the costs necessary for the Bidder to fully comply with the contract terms and conditions and RFP requirements.
- c. Failure to provide the requested information and to follow the required cost proposal format provided in Appendix B may result in the exclusion of the proposal from consideration, at the discretion of CDS.
- d. No costs related to the preparation of the proposal for this RFP or to the negotiation of the contract with CDS may be included in the proposal. Only costs to be incurred after the contract effective date that are specifically related to the implementation or operation of contracted services may be included.

4.4 Economic Impact within the State of Maine

In addition to all other information requested within this RFP, each Bidder must dedicate a section of its proposal to describing the Bidder's economic impact upon and within the

State of Maine. The use of economic impact in making contract award decisions is required in accordance with Executive Order 2012-004, which states that certain service contracts "...advertised for competitive bid shall include scoring criteria evaluating the responding Bidder's economic impact on the Maine economy and State revenues."

For the purposes of this RFP, the term "economic impact" shall be defined as any activity that is directly performed by or related to the Bidder and has a direct and positive impact on the Maine economy and public revenues within the State of Maine. Examples may include, but are not limited to, employment of Maine residents, subcontracting/partnering with Maine businesses, payment of State and Local taxes (such as corporate, sales, or property taxes), and the payment of State licensing fees for the Bidder's business operations.

To complete the "economic impact" section of the Bidder's proposal, the Bidder shall include no more than one page of typed text, describing the Bidder's current, recent, or projected economic impact with the State of Maine, as defined above. The Bidder may include all details and information that it finds to be most relevant for this section.

4.5 Proposal Organization

To ensure consistency of presentation, to ensure that CDS personnel can easily find required information, and to ensure that all requirements have been addressed CDS requests that proposals be organized as follows:

- a. Cover Letter as described in Section 4.2.1,
- b. Bidder Qualifications as outlined in Section 4.2.2,
- c. Technical Proposal as outlined in Section 4.2.3,
- d. Work Plan and Timelines as outlined in Section 4.2.4,
- e. Cost Proposal as outlined in Section 4.3 in separate sealed envelope (Appendix A –Cost Proposal Form).

5. PROPOSAL EVALUATION AND SELECTION

Evaluation of the submitted proposals shall be accomplished as follows:

5.1 Proposal Evaluation Process

- 1. An evaluation team, comprised of qualified reviewers, will judge the merits of the proposals received in accordance with the criteria defined in the RFP, and in accordance with the most advantageous cost and economic impact considerations (where applicable) for the State.
- 2. Officials responsible for making decisions on the selection of a contractor shall ensure that the selection process accords equal opportunity and appropriate consideration to all who are capable of meeting the specifications. The goals of the evaluation process are to ensure fairness and objectivity in review of the proposals and to ensure that the contract is awarded to the Bidder whose proposal best satisfies the criteria of the RFP at a reasonable/competitive cost.
- 3. CDS reserves the right to communicate and/or schedule interviews/presentations with Bidders if needed to obtain clarification of information contained in the proposals received, and the Department may revise the scores assigned in the initial evaluation to reflect those communications and/or interviews/presentations. Interviews/presentations are not required, and changes to proposals will not be permitted during any interview/presentation process. Therefore, Bidders should submit proposals that present their costs and other requested information as clearly and completely as possible.

5.2 Evaluation of Proposals

The Evaluation Committee shall be under no obligation to contact bidders for clarification of proposals, but shall reserve the right to do so at any time prior to Agreement award.

. Each proposal will be evaluated on the basis of the categories below. A point score will be established for each response in each category. Based on the results of the evaluation, the proposals determined to be most advantageous to CDS, taking into account all of the evaluation factors, will be selected by CDS.

Scoring Weights

Scoring Weights: The score will be based on a 100 point scale and will measure the degree to which each proposal meets the following criteria.

1. Bidder Qualifications:

Includes all elements addressed above in Section 4.2.1 and 4.2.2

2. Proposed Services

• Includes all elements addressed above in Sections 4.2.3, 4.2.4, and 4.2.5

Total Possible: 30 pts

Total Possible: 40 pts

3. Cost Proposal

Total Possible: 25 pts

• Includes all elements addressed above in Sections 4.3

4. Economic Impact within the State of Maine

Total Possible: 5 pts

• Includes all elements addressed above in Sections 4.4

5.3 Test and Evaluation

At the option of the Evaluation Committee, a test and evaluation (T&E) may be conducted

One or more of the bidders who achieve the highest score (the finalists) may be required:

- 1. To provide a live demonstration of its proposed solution, preferably in an educational setting;
- 2. To make its solution available to a CDS designated team who will conduct a series of handson tests to evaluate functional capabilities as pertain to the goals of this RFP; or
- 3. Both 1 and 2.

The need, if any, for this Test and Evaluation (T&E) stage will be determined by the Evaluation Committee after completing the evaluation of proposals specified in Section 4.2 of this RFP. For this stage of the evaluation and at short notice (perhaps as soon as 3 business days), each finalist must be prepared to make its proposed solution available to the Evaluation Committee at a bidder site agreed upon by the bidder and CDS. During this T&E period, the bidder's proposed project manager and other senior staff must make any requested presentation.

If this T&E stage is conducted, the Evaluation Committee will further assess and validate the functionality and effectiveness of each finalist's proposal through bidder demonstrations, CDS hands-on tests or both. This assessment and validation may result in changes to the scores of a finalist's proposal by the Evaluation Committee.

5.4 Final Scoring

The finalist who achieves the highest score – that is whose proposal reflects the best value offer to CDS - will be awarded the Agreement subject to successful Agreement negotiations and required Agreement approvals.

5.4.1 Scoring

1. Scoring Process: The review team will use a <u>consensus</u> approach to evaluate the bids. Members of the review team will not score the proposals individually but instead will arrive at a consensus as to assignment of points on each category of each proposal. The contract award(s) will be made to the Bidder(s) receiving the highest number of evaluation points, based upon the proposals' satisfaction of the criteria established in the RFP. The Economic Impact section will also be scored using a consensus approach, with the highest number of evaluation points being assigned to the Bidder(s) with the most economic impact, actual or feasible, as determined by the evaluation team. The Cost section will be scored according to a mathematical formula described below.

2. Scoring the Cost Proposal: The total cost proposed for conducting all the functions specified in this RFP will be assigned a score according to a mathematical formula. The lowest bid will be awarded 25 points Proposals with higher bids values will be awarded proportionately fewer points calculated in comparison with the lowest bid. The scoring formula is:

(lowest submitted cost proposal / cost of proposal being scored) x 25 = pro-rated score

No Best and Final Offers: The State of Maine will not seek a best and final offer (BAFO) from any bidder in this procurement process. All Bidders are expected to provide their best value pricing with the submission of their cost proposal.

3. Negotiations

CDS reserves the right to negotiate with the successful Bidder to finalize a contract at the same rate or cost of service as presented in the selected proposal. Such negotiations may not significantly vary the content, nature or requirements of the proposal or CDS's Request for Proposals to an extent that may affect the price of goods or services requested. <u>CDS reserves the right to terminate contract negotiations with a selected respondent who submits a proposed contract significantly different from the proposal they submitted in response to the advertised RFP. In the event that an acceptable contract cannot be negotiated with the highest ranked Bidder, CDS may withdraw its award and negotiate with the next-highest ranked Bidder, and so on, until an acceptable contract has been finalized. Alternatively, CDS may cancel the RFP, at its sole discretion.</u>

5.4.2 Selection and Award

- a) The final decision regarding the award of the contract will be made by representatives of CDS subject to approval by the State Purchases Review Committee.
- b) Notification of contractor selection or non-selection will be made in writing by CDS.
- c) Issuance of this RFP in no way constitutes a commitment by the State of Maine to award a contract, to pay costs incurred in the preparation of a response to this request, or to pay costs incurred in procuring or contracting for services, supplies, physical space, personnel or any other costs incurred by the Bidder.
- d) CDS reserves the right to reject any and all proposals or to make multiple awards.

5.4.3 Appeal of Contract Awards

Any person aggrieved by the award decision that results from this RFP may appeal the decision to the Director of the Bureau of General Services in the manner prescribed in 5 MRSA § 1825-E and 18-554 Code of Maine Rules, Chapter 120 (found here:

<u>http://www.maine.gov/purchases/policies/120.shtml</u>). The appeal must be in writing and filed with the Director of the Bureau of General Services, 9 State House Station, Augusta, Maine, 04333-0009 within 15 calendar days of receipt of notification of contract award.

If this RFP results in the creation of a pre-qualified or pre-approved list of vendors, then the appeal procedures mentioned above are available upon the original determination of that vendor list, but not during subsequent competitive procedures involving only the prequalified or pre-approved list participants.

6. CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION AND CONDITIONS

6.1 Contract Document

1. The successful Bidder will be required to execute a contract in the form of a State of Maine Agreement to Purchase Services (BP54-IT) (see Appendix D).

The complete set of standard BP54-IT contract documents may be found on the Division of Purchases website at the following link: http://www.maine.gov/purchases/info/forms/BP54.doc

Other forms and contract documents commonly used by the State can be found on the Division of Purchases website at the following link: <u>http://www.maine.gov/purchases/info/forms.shtml</u>

2. Allocation of funds is final upon successful negotiation and execution of the contract, subject to the review and approval of the State Purchases Review Committee. Contracts are not considered fully executed and valid until approved by the State Purchases Review Committee and funds are encumbered. No contract will be approved based on an RFP which has an effective date less than fourteen (14) calendar days after award notification to Bidders. (Referenced in the regulations of CDS of Administrative and Financial Services, Chapter 110, § 3(B)(i): http://www.maine.gov/purchases/policies/110.shtml

This provision means that a contract cannot be effective until <u>at least</u> 14 days after award notification.

- 3. CDS <u>estimates</u> having a contract in place by March 1, 2014. The State recognizes, however, that the actual contract effective date depends upon completion of the RFP process, date of formal award notification, length of contract negotiation, and preparation and approval by the State Purchases Review Committee. Any appeals to CDS's award decision(s) may further postpone the actual contract effective date, depending upon the outcome. The contract effective date may need to be adjusted, if necessary, to comply with mandated requirements.
- 4. In providing services and performing under the contract, the successful Bidder shall act independently and not as an agent of the State of Maine.

6.2 Standard State Agreement Provisions

- 1. Agreement Administration
 - a. Following the award, an Agreement Administrator from CDS will be appointed to assist with the development and administration of the contract and to act as administrator

during the entire contract period. CDS staff will be available after the award to consult with the successful Bidder in the finalization of the contract.

b. In the event that an acceptable contract cannot be negotiated with the highest ranked Bidder, CDS may withdraw its award and negotiate with the next-highest ranked Bidder, and so on, until an acceptable contract has been finalized. Alternatively, CDS may cancel the RFP, at its sole discretion.

2. Payments and Other Provisions

The State anticipates paying the Contractor on the basis of net 30 payment terms, upon the receipt of an accurate and acceptable invoice. An invoice will be considered accurate and acceptable if it contains a reference to the State of Maine contract number, contains correct pricing information relative to the contract, and provides any required supporting documents, as applicable, and any other specific and agreed-upon requirements listed within the contract that results from this RFP.

7. LIST OF RFP APPENDICES AND RELATED DOCUMENTS

Appendix A – Cost Proposal Form Appendix B – Supporting Policy Documents

Appendix C – Acronyms

Appendix D – Standard Agreement

7.1 Appendix A - Cost Proposal Form

All costs necessary for implementing and running the proposed system must be identified.

COST PROPOSAL <u>PROJECT COST</u>	Proposed Proposed I Deliverable Deliverable D # #			roposed additional liverable columns as # needed	Total
Project Initiation					\$0.00
Planning and Design					SO.00
Development and Testing					\$0. 00
Rollout and Training					\$0.0 0
Production Cutover/Stabilization					\$0.00
Total	\$0.00 S0.00	\$0.00 \$0.00	\$0.00 \$0.00	\$0.00 \$0.00	\$0.00

Software Licenses

Grand Total

Annual License, Maintenance & Support Costs (includes training) Software Costs (list details) Hosting Costs

Signature

State of Maine RFP # 201309603 Rev. 10/12

7.2 Appendix B - Supporting Policy Documents

FERPA can be found at the following website:

http://www.ed.gov/policy/gen/guid/fpco/ferpa/index.html

HIPAA can be found at the following website:

http://www.hhs.gov/ocr/hipaa/

Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA)

http://idea.ed.gov/

Maine Revised Statutes Annotated Title 20-A: Education can be found at the following website: <u>http://janus.state.me.us/legis/statutes/20-A/title20-Ach0sec0.html</u>

Maine Web Accessibility Policy can be found at the following website:

http://www.maine.gov/oit/accessibility/policy/webpolicy.htm

Maine Web Standards can be found at the following website:

http://www.maine.gov/oit/accessibility/policy/acc_webstandards.html

The State of Maine Information Technology Security Policy can be found at:

http://www.maine.gov/oit/policies/SecurityPolicy.htm

The State of Maine's Remote Hosting Policy can be found at:

http://maine.gov/oit/policies/Remote-Hosting-Policy.htm

Architecture Compliance Policy can be found at the following website:

http://www.maine.gov/oit/policies/ArchitectureCompliancePolicy.html

Deployment Certification Policy for Major Application Projects can be found at the following website: <u>http://maine.gov/oit/policies/Application-Deployment-Certification.htm</u>

Appendix C - Acronyms

Acronym	Description
AES	Advanced Encryption Standard
CDS	Child Development Services
COTS	Commercial Off the Shelf
CEDS	Common Education Data Standards
eCIMS	Early Childhood Intervention Management System
FAPE	Free Appropriate Public Education
FERPA	Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act
FOAA	State of Maine Freedom of Access Act
HIPPA	Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act
IDEA	Individuals with Disabilities Education Act
IEP	Individualized Education Program
IFSP	Individualized Family Service Plan
MDOE	Maine Department of Education
MEDMS	Maine Education Data Management System
OIT	State Office of Information Technology
PII	Personally Identifiable Information
RFP	Request For Proposal
SLDS	Statewide Longitudinal Data System
SAU	School Administrative Unit
SIS	Student Information System
SSL	Secure Sockets Layer
TLS	Transport Layer Security

7.3 Appendix D – Standard Agreement

Rev. 10/12

AdvantageME CT No:

STATE OF MAINE DEPARTMENT OF Agreement to Purchase Services

THIS AGREEMENT, made this	day of ,	, is by and between the State of
Maine,, herein	after called "Department," and	, located at
	, telephone number	, hereinafter
called "Provider", for the period of	to	•

The AdvantageME Vendor/Customer number of the Provider is _____

WITNESSETH, that for and in consideration of the payments and agreements hereinafter mentioned, to be made and performed by CDS, the Provider hereby agrees with CDS to furnish all qualified personnel, facilities, materials and services and in consultation with CDS, to perform the services, study or projects described in Rider A, and under the terms of this Agreement. The following riders are hereby incorporated into this Agreement and made part of it by reference:

> Rider A - Specifications of Work to be Performed Rider B-IT - Payment and Other Provisions Rider C – Exceptions to Rider B-IT Rider D/E/F – At Department's Discretion Rider G – Identification of Country in Which Contracted Work will be Performed

WITNESSETH, that this contract is consistent with Executive Order 17 FY 08/09 or a superseding Executive Order, and complies with its requirements.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, CDS and the Provider, by their representatives duly authorized, have executed this agreement in ______ original copies.

	DEP	ARTMENT OF	
	By:		
		and	
	By:	Name and Title, Provider Representative	
		Name and The, Flovider Representative	
Total Agreement Amount: \$			
Approved:			
Chair, State Purchases Review Commi BP54 (Rev 9/07) – (Rev Rider B-IT 7/			
State of Maine RFP # 201309602	3		45

AdvantageME ACCOUNT CODING

VC NUMBER	OC TOTAL	Г	iiT	NIT	31	3 NO.	GRAM
C NILVIBER	OC TOTAL		. IT	NIT NIT		NO.	GRAM
VC NUMBER	OC TOTAL		IT	NIT	BJ	3 NO.	GRA

Department Account Coding And Approval For Use by OIT (As needed, Department completes applicable fields)

Department Name: Department Contact Name and Phone Address: Department Internal Agreement Numb	Number:		
Agreement Start Date: RFP Number: Service/Program Name: Fixed Asset Name (if applicable): Fixed Asset Improvement (Y/N) Type of Agreement New Amendment			e:
UNT #	l0 ibrance	l1 abrance	nent Total
le: 010.18F.0291.01.5312			

Department Approver:	 Date:

RIDER A SPECIFICATIONS OF WORK TO BE PERFORMED

RIDER B-IT

METHOD OF PAYMENT AND OTHER PROVISIONS

1. AGREEMENT AMOUNT \$________

2. <u>INVOICES AND PAYMENTS</u> CDS will pay the Provider as follows:

Invoices for payment, submitted on forms approved by CDS, shall be submitted to the Agreement Administrator. Invoices shall contain sufficient detail to allow proper cost allocation and shall be accompanied by supporting documentation. No invoice will be processed for payment until approved by the Agreement Administrator. All invoices require the following:

- A. All invoices must include the Vendor Code number assigned when registering as a vendor with the State of Maine. This number appears on all Contracts and Purchase Orders and can be acquired from the agency contact.
- B. All invoices must include the Bidder's Federal ID Number.
- C. All invoices must include either the Purchase Order number or the Contract number relating to the commodities/services provided.
- D. In cases where hourly rates of contracted resources are concerned, invoices must contain a copy or copies of time sheets associated with that invoice. Time sheets will need to be reviewed and approved by the State's contract administrator.

Payments are subject to the Provider's compliance with all items set forth in this Agreement. CDS will pay the Provider within thirty (30) days following the receipt of an approved invoice.

CDS may withhold a Retainage for project-based services in the following manner:

- The allowable payment amount from each project milestone payment will be multiplied by ten (10) percent, giving the amount that will be withheld from payment. Ninety (90) percent of the allowable project milestone payment amount will be paid to the Provider.
- The Retainage will be held by CDS until the end of the warranty period.

The charges described in this Agreement are the only charges to be levied by the Provider for the products and services to be delivered by it. There are no other charges to be made by the Provider to CDS, unless they are performed in accordance with the provisions of Section 5, Changes in the Work. The Provider shall maintain documentation for all charges against CDS under this Agreement.

3. <u>INDEPENDENT CAPACITY</u>

In the performance of this Agreement, the

State of Maine RFP # 201309603 Rev. 10/12 Provider shall act in the capacity of an independent contractor and not as an employee or agent of the State.

4. <u>AGREEMENT ADMINISTRATOR</u> The Agreement Administrator is CDS's representative for this Agreement. S/he is the single authority to act on behalf of CDS for this Agreement. S/he shall approve all invoices for payment. S/he shall make decisions on all claims of the Provider. The Provider shall address all contract correspondence and invoices to the Agreement Administrator. The following person is the Agreement Administrator for this Agreement:

Name:	
Title:	
Address:	
Telephone:	
E-mail address:	

The following individual is designated as the Program Administrator for this Agreement and shall be responsible for oversight of the programmatic aspects of this Agreement. All project status reports, day to day operational issues and project program material and issues shall be directed to this individual.

Name:	
Title:	
Address:	
Felephone:	
E-mail address:	

5. <u>CHANGES IN THE WORK</u> CDS may order changes in the work, the Agreement Amount being adjusted accordingly. Any monetary adjustment or any substantive change in the work shall be in the form of an amendment signed by both parties and approved by the State Purchases Review Committee. Said amendment must be effective prior to the execution of the changed work.

6. <u>SUBCONTRATORS</u> The Provider may not enter into any subcontract for the work to be performed under this Agreement without the express written consent of CDS. This provision shall not apply to contracts of employment between the Provider and its employees.

The Provider is solely responsible for the performance of work under this Agreement. The approval of CDS for the Provider to subcontract for work under this Agreement shall not relieve the Provider in any way of its responsibility for performance of the work.

All Subcontractors shall be bound by the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement. The Provider shall give the State immediate notice in writing of any legal action or suit filed, and prompt notice of any claim made against the Provider by any Subcontractor, which may result in litigation related in any way to this Agreement, or which may affect the performance of duties under this Agreement. The Provider shall indemnify and hold harmless CDS from and against any such claim, loss, damage, or liability as set forth in Section 16, State held Harmless.

7. <u>SUBLETTING, ASSIGNMENT OR TRANSFER</u> The Provider shall not sublet, sell, transfer, assign, or otherwise dispose of this Agreement, or any portion thereof, or of its right, title, or interest therein, without the written approval of CDS. Such approval shall not in any case relieve the Provider of its responsibility for performance of work under this Agreement.

8. <u>EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY</u> During the performance of this Agreement, the Provider certifies as follows:

1. The Provider shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment relating to this Agreement because of race, color, religious creed, sex, national origin, ancestry, age, physical or mental disability, or sexual orientation, unless related to a *bona fide* occupational qualification. The Provider shall take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and employees are treated during employment, without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, age, national origin, physical or mental disability, or sexual orientation.

Such action shall include but not be limited to the following: employment, upgrading, demotions, or transfers; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoffs or terminations; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training including apprenticeship. The Provider agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.

2. The Provider shall, in all solicitations or advertising for employees placed by, or on behalf of, the Provider, relating to this Agreement, state that all qualified applicants shall receive consideration for employment without regard to race, color, religious creed, sex, national origin, ancestry, age, physical or mental disability, or sexual orientation.

3. The Provider shall send to each labor union, or representative of the workers, with which it has a collective bargaining agreement, or other agreement or understanding, whereby it is furnished with labor for the performance of this Agreement, a notice to be provided by the contracting agency, advising the said labor union or workers' representative of the Provider's commitment under this section, and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment.

4. The Provider shall inform the contracting Department's Equal Employment Opportunity Coordinator of any discrimination complaints brought to an external regulatory body (Maine Human Rights Commission, EEOC, Office of Civil Rights, etc.) against itself by any individual, as well as any lawsuit regarding alleged discriminatory practice.

5. The Provider shall comply with all aspects of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) in employment, and in the provision of service, to include accessibility and reasonable accommodations for employees and clients.

6. Contractors and Subcontractors with contracts in excess of \$50,000 shall also pursue in good faith affirmative action programs.

7. The Provider shall cause the foregoing provisions to be inserted in any subcontract for any work covered by this Agreement so that such provisions shall be binding upon each Subcontractor, provided that the foregoing provisions shall not apply to contracts or subcontracts for standard commercial supplies or raw materials.

9. EMPLOYMENT AND PERSONNEL The Provider shall not engage any person in the employ of any State Department or Agency in a position that would constitute a violation of 5 MRSA § 18 or 17 MRSA § 3104. The Provider shall not engage on a full-time. part-time, or any other basis, during the period of this Agreement, any personnel who are, or have been, at any time during the period of this Agreement, in the employ of any State Department or Agency, except regularly retired employees, without the written consent of the State Purchases Review Committee. Further, the Provider shall not engage on this project on a full-time, part-time, or any other basis, during the period of this Agreement, any retired employee of CDS, who has not been retired for at least one year, without the written consent of the State Purchases Review Committee. The Provider shall cause the foregoing provisions to be inserted in any subcontract for any work covered by this Agreement, so that such provisions shall be binding upon each Subcontractor, provided that the foregoing provisions shall not apply to contracts or subcontracts for standard commercial supplies or raw materials.

10. <u>STATE EMPLOYEES NOT TO BENEFIT</u> No individual employed by the State at the time this Agreement is executed, or any time thereafter, shall be admitted to any share or part of this Agreement, or to any benefit that might arise there from, directly or indirectly, that would constitute a violation of 5 MRSA § 18 or 17 MRSA § 3104. No other individual employed by the State at the time this Agreement is executed, or any time thereafter, shall be admitted to any share or part of this Agreement, or to any benefit that might arise there from, directly or indirectly, due to his employment by, or financial interest in, the Provider, or any affiliate of the Provider, without the written consent of the State Purchases Review Committee. The Provider shall cause the foregoing provisions to be inserted in any subcontract for any work covered by this Agreement so that such provisions shall be binding upon each Subcontractor, provided that the foregoing provisions shall not apply to contracts or subcontracts for standard commercial supplies or raw materials.

11. <u>NO SOLICITATION</u> The Provider certifies that it has not employed or contracted with any company or person, other than for assistance with the normal study and preparation of a proposal, to solicit or secure this Agreement, and that it has not paid, or agreed to pay, any company or person, other than a *bona fide* employee working solely for the Provider, any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gifts, or any other consideration, contingent upon, or resulting from, the award of this Agreement. For breach or violation of this provision, CDS shall have the right to terminate this Agreement without liability or, at its discretion, to otherwise recover the full amount of such fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift, or contingent fee.

12. ACCOUNTING, RECORDS, AND AUDIT

1. The Provider shall maintain all books, documents, payrolls, papers, accounting records, and other evidence pertaining to this Agreement, including interim reports and working papers, and make such materials available at its offices at all reasonable times during the period of this Agreement, and for a period of five (5) years following termination or expiration of the Agreement. If any litigation, claim or audit is started before the expiration of the 5-year period, the records must be retained until all litigation, claims or audit findings involving the agreement have been resolved.

2. Unless CDS specifies in writing a shorter period of time, the Provider agrees to preserve and make available all documents and records pertaining to this Agreement for a period of five (5) years from the date of termination of this Agreement.

3. Records involving matters in litigation shall be kept for one year following the termination of litigation, including all appeals.

4. Authorized Federal and State representatives shall have access to, and the right to examine, all pertinent documents and records during the five-year post-Agreement period. During the five-year post-Agreement period, delivery of, and access to, all pertinent documents and records will be at no cost to CDS.
5. The Provider shall be liable for any State or Federal audit exceptions, if applicable, that arise out of any action, inaction, or negligence by the Provider. In the event of an audit exception for which the Provider is liable, the Provider shall have thirty (30) days to remedy that exception. If the Provider fails to remedy that exception within this time period, the Provider shall immediately return to CDS all payments made under this Agreement which have been disallowed in the audit exception.

6. Authorized State and Federal representatives shall at all reasonable times have the right to enter the premises, or such other places, where duties under this Agreement are being performed, to inspect, monitor, or otherwise evaluate, the work being performed. All inspections and evaluations shall be performed in such a manner that will not compromise the work unreasonably.

7. ACCESS TO PUBLIC RECORDS As a condition of accepting a contract for services under this section, a contractor must agree to treat all records, other than proprietary information, relating to personal services work performed under the contract as public records under the freedom of access laws to the same extent as if the work were performed directly by CDS or agency. For the purposes of this subsection, "proprietary information" means information that is a trade secret or commercial or financial information, the disclosure of which would impair the competitive position of the contractor and would make available information not otherwise publicly available. Information relating to wages and benefits of the employees performing the personal services work under the contract and information concerning employee and contract oversight and accountability procedures and systems are not proprietary information. The Provider shall maintain all books, documents, payrolls, papers, accounting records and other evidence pertaining to this Agreement and make such materials available at its offices at all reasonable times during the period of this Agreement and for such subsequent period as specified under Maine Uniform Accounting and Auditing Practices for Community Agencies (MAAP) rules. The Provider shall allow inspection of pertinent documents by CDS or any authorized representative of the State of Maine or Federal Government, and shall furnish copies thereof, if requested. This subsection applies to contracts, contract extensions and contract amendments executed on or after October 1, 2009.

13. TERMINATION The performance of work under this Agreement may be terminated by CDS in whole or in part, whenever, for any reason the Agreement Administrator shall determine that such termination is in the best interests of CDS. Any such termination shall be effected by the delivery to the Provider of a Notice of Termination specifying the extent to which the performance of work under this Agreement is terminated, and the date on which such termination becomes effective. The Agreement shall be equitably adjusted to compensate for such termination and modified accordingly.

Upon receipt of the Notice of Termination, the Provider shall:

1. Stop work under this Agreement on the date and to the extent specified in the Notice of Termination;

2. Take such action as may be necessary, or as the Agreement Administrator may direct, for the protection and preservation of the property, information, and data related to this Agreement, which is in the possession of the Provider, and in which CDS has, or may acquire, an interest;

3. Terminate all orders to the extent that they relate to the performance of the work terminated by the Notice of Termination;

4. Assign to CDS in the manner, and to the extent directed by the Agreement Administrator, all of the rights, titles, and interests of the Provider under the orders so terminated, in which case CDS shall have the right, at its discretion, to settle or pay any or all claims arising out of the termination of such orders;

5. With the approval of the Agreement Administrator, settle all outstanding liabilities and claims, arising out of such termination of orders, the cost of which would be reimbursable in whole or in part, in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement;

6. Transfer title to CDS (to the extent that title has not already been transferred) and deliver in the manner, at the times, and to the extent directed by the Agreement Administrator, equipment and products purchased pursuant to this Agreement, and all files, source code, data manuals, or other documentation, in any form, that relate to all the work completed, or in progress, prior to the Notice of Termination;

7. Complete the performance of such part of the work as shall not have been terminated by the Notice of Termination; and

8. Proceed immediately with the performance of the preceding obligations, notwithstanding any delay in determining or adjusting the amount of any compensation under this section.

Notwithstanding the above, nothing herein shall limit the right of CDS to pursue any other legal remedies against the Provider.

14. <u>GOVERNMENTAL REQUIREMENTS</u> The Provider shall comply with all applicable governmental ordinances, laws, and regulations.

15. <u>**GOVERNING LAW</u>** This Agreement shall be governed by, interpreted, and enforced in accordance with the laws, statutes, and regulations of the State of Maine, without regard to conflicts of law provisions. The provisions of the United Nations Convention on Contracts for the International Sale of Goods and of the Uniform Computer Information Transactions Act shall not apply to this Agreement. Any legal proceeding against CDS regarding this Agreement shall be brought in the State of Maine in a court of competent jurisdiction.</u>

16. <u>STATE HELD HARMLESS</u> The Provider shall indemnify and hold harmless CDS and its officers, agents, and employees from and against any and all claims, liabilities, and costs, including reasonable attorney fees, for any or all injuries to persons or property or claims for money damages, including claims for violation of intellectual property rights, arising from the negligent acts or omissions of the Provider, its employees or agents, officers or Subcontractors in the performance of work under this Agreement; provided, however, the Provider shall not be liable for claims arising out of the negligent acts or omissions of CDS, or for actions taken in reasonable reliance on written instructions of CDS.

17. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY The Provider's liability for damages sustained by CDS as the result of Provider's default or acts or omissions in the performance of work under this Agreement, whether such damages arise out of breach, negligence, misrepresentation, or otherwise, shall be no greater than:

1. Damages for violation or infringement of any copyright or trademark;

2. Damages for bodily injury (including death) to persons, and damages for physical injury to tangible personal property or real property; and

3. The amount of any other actual direct damages up to the greater of \$500,000 or three times the value of the Product or Service that is the subject of the claim, up to a maximum of \$25,000,000. For example, if the Product or Service that is the subject of the claim was valued at \$15,000,000, then the Provider would be liable for no more than \$25,000,000. For purposes of this subsection, the term "Product" would typically include the following, but not be limited to, Materials, Source Code, Machine Code, and Licenses.

Notwithstanding the above, Provider shall not be liable for any indirect or consequential damages.

18. <u>NOTICE OF CLAIMS</u> The Provider shall give the Agreement Administrator immediate notice in writing of any legal action or suit filed related in any way to this Agreement, or which may affect the performance of duties under this Agreement, and prompt notice of any claim made against the Provider by any Subcontractor, which may result in litigation related in any way to this Agreement, or which may affect the performance of duties under the performance of duties under this Agreement.

19. <u>APPROVAL</u> This Agreement must be approved by the State Controller and the State Purchases Review Committee before it can be considered a valid enforceable document.

20. **INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS** The Provider shall procure and maintain, for the duration of the Agreement, insurance against claims for injuries to persons, or damages to property, which may arise from, or in connection with, the fulfillment of this Agreement by the Provider, its agents, representatives, employees, or Subcontractors.

1. <u>Minimum Coverage</u>

1. Commercial general liability (including products, completed operations, and broad-form contractual): \$1,000,000 per occurrence;

2. Workers' Compensation and employer's liability: as required by law;

3. Professional liability: \$1,000,000; and

4. Property (including contents coverage for all records maintained pursuant to this Agreement): \$1,000,000 per occurrence.

2. <u>Other Provisions</u> Unless explicitly waived by CDS, the insurance policies should contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

1. The Provider's insurance coverage shall be the primary insurance. Any insurance or self- insurance maintained by CDS for its officers, agents, and employees shall be in excess of the Provider's insurance and shall not contribute to it.

2. The Provider's insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer's liability.

3. The Provider shall furnish CDS with certificates of insurance and with those endorsements, if any, effecting coverage required by these Insurance Requirements. The certificates and endorsements for each insurance policy are to be signed by a person authorized by the insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. All certificates and endorsements are to be received and approved by CDS before this Agreement commences. CDS reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies at any time.

4. All policies should contain a revised cancellation clause allowing thirty (30) days notice to CDS in the event of cancellation for any reason including nonpayment.

21. <u>NON-APPROPRIATION</u> Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, if CDS does not receive sufficient funds to pay for the work to be performed under this Agreement, if funds are de-appropriated, or if the State does not receive legal authority to expend funds from the Maine State Legislature or Maine courts, then the State is not obligated to make payment under this Agreement.

22. SEVERABILITY The invalidity or unenforceability of any particular provision, or part thereof, of this Agreement shall not affect the remainder of said provision, or any other provisions, and this Agreement shall be construed in all respects as if such invalid or unenforceable provision or part thereof had been omitted.

23. <u>INTEGRATION</u> All terms of this Agreement are to be interpreted in such a way as to be consistent at all times with the terms of Rider B-IT (except for expressed exceptions to Rider B-IT included in Rider C), followed in precedence by Rider A, and any remaining Riders in alphabetical order.

24. **FORCE MAJEURE** Either party may be excused from the performance of an obligation under this Agreement in the event that performance of that obligation by a party is prevented by an act of God, act of war, riot, fire, explosion, flood, or other catastrophe, sabotage, severe shortage of fuel, power or raw materials, change in law, court order, national defense requirement, strike or labor dispute, provided that any such event, and the delay caused thereby, is beyond the control of, and could not reasonably be avoided by that party. Upon the occurrence of an event of force majeure, the time period for performance of the obligation excused under this section shall be extended by the period of the excused delay, together with a reasonable period, to reinstate compliance with the terms of this Agreement.

25. <u>SET-OFF RIGHTS</u> The State shall have all of its common law, equitable, and statutory rights of set-off. These rights shall include, but not be limited to, the State's option to withhold for the purposes of set-off any monies due to the Provider under this Agreement, up to any amounts due and owing to the State with regard to this Agreement, any other Agreement with any State department or agency, including any Agreement for a term commencing prior to the term of this Agreement, plus any amounts due and owing to the State for any other reason including, without limitation, tax delinquencies, fee delinquencies, or monetary penalties relative thereto. The State shall exercise its set-off rights in accordance with normal State practices including, in cases of set-off pursuant to an audit, the finalization of such audit by the State agency, its representatives, or the State Controller.

26. INTERPRETATION OF THE AGREEMENT

1. <u>Reliance on Policy Determinations</u> CDS shall determine all program policy. The Provider may, from time to time, request CDS to make policy determinations, or to issue operating guidelines required for the proper performance of this Agreement, and the Agreement Administrator shall respond in writing in a timely manner. The Provider shall be entitled to rely upon, and act in accordance with, such written policy determinations and operating guidelines, unless subsequently amended, modified, or changed in writing by CDS, and shall incur no liability in doing so unless the Provider acts negligently, maliciously, fraudulently, or in bad faith. Nothing contained in this Agreement, or in any agreement, determination, operating guideline, or other communication from CDS shall relieve the Provider of its obligation to keep itself informed of applicable State and Federal laws, regulations, policies, procedure, and guidelines, to be in complete compliance and conformity therewith.

2. <u>**Titles Not Controlling**</u> Titles of sections and paragraphs used in this Agreement are for the purpose of facilitating ease of reference only and shall not be construed to imply a contractual construction of the language.

3. <u>No Rule of Construction</u> This is a negotiated Agreement and no rule of construction shall apply that construes ambiguous or unclear language in favor of or against any party.

27. <u>PERIOD OF WORK</u> Work under this Agreement shall begin no sooner than the date on which this Agreement has been fully executed by the parties and approved by the Controller and the State Purchases Review Committee. Unless terminated earlier, this Agreement shall expire on the date set out on the first page of this Agreement, or at the completion and acceptance of all specified tasks, and delivery of all contracted products and services as defined in this Agreement, including performance of any warranty and/or maintenance agreements, whichever is the later date.

28. NOTICES All notices under this Agreement shall be deemed duly given: 1) upon delivery, if delivered by hand against receipt, or 2) five (5) business days following posting, if sent by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested. Either party may change its address for notification purposes by giving written notice of the change and setting forth the new address and an effective date.

29. <u>ADVERTISING AND PUBLICATIONS</u> The Provider shall not publish any statement, news release, or advertisement pertaining to this Agreement without the prior written approval of the Agreement Administrator. Should this Agreement be funded, in whole or in part, by Federal funds, then in compliance with the Steven's Amendment, it will be clearly stated when issuing statements, press releases, requests for proposals, bid solicitations, and other documents: (1) the percentage of the total cost that was financed with Federal moneys; and (2) the dollar amount of Federal funds.

30. <u>CONFLICT OF INTEREST</u> The Provider certifies that it presently has no interest and shall not acquire any interest which would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of its services hereunder. The Provider further certifies that in the performance of this Agreement, no person having any such known interests shall be employed.

31. <u>LOBBYING</u>

1. <u>Public Funds</u> No Federal or State-appropriated funds shall be expended by the Provider for influencing, or attempting to influence, an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress or State Legislature, an officer or employee of Congress or State Legislature, or an employee of a member of Congress or State Legislature, in connection with any of the following covered actions: the awarding of any agreement; the making of any grant; the entering into of any cooperative agreement; or the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any agreement, grant, or cooperative agreement. Signing this Agreement fulfills the State of Maine RFP # 201309603 57 Rev. 10/12 requirement that Providers receiving over \$100,000 in Federal or State funds file with CDS on this provision.

2. <u>Federal Certification</u> Section 1352 of Title 31 of the US Code requires that funds appropriated to a Federal agency be subject to a requirement that any Federal Provider or grantee (such as CDS) certifies that no Federal funds will be used to lobby or influence a Federal officer or member of Congress.

The certification CDS has been required to sign provides that the language of this certification shall be included in the award documents for all sub-awards at all tiers (including sub-agreements, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall verify and disclose accordingly. The certification also requires the completion of Federal lobbying reports and the imposition of a civil penalty of \$10,000 to \$100,000 for failing to make a required report. As a sub-recipient, the Provider understands and agrees to the Federal requirements for certification and disclosure.

3. <u>Other Funds</u> If any non-Federal or State funds have been or will be paid to any person in connection with any of the covered actions in this section, the Provider shall complete and submit a "Disclosure of Lobbying Activities" form to CDS.

32. PROVIDER PERSONNEL

1. The parties recognize that the primary value of the Provider to CDS derives directly from its Key Personnel assigned in the performance of this Agreement. Key Personnel are deemed to be those individuals whose résumés were offered by the Provider in the Proposal. Therefore, the parties agree that said Key Personnel shall be assigned in accordance with the time frames in the most recent mutually agreed upon project schedule and work plan, and that no re-deployment or replacement of any Key Personnel may be made without the prior written consent of the Agreement Administrator. Replacement of such personnel, if approved, shall be with personnel of equal or greater abilities and qualifications.

2. CDS shall retain the right to reject any of the Provider's employees whose abilities and qualifications, in CDS's judgment, are not appropriate for the performance of this Agreement. In considering the Provider's employees' abilities and qualifications, CDS shall act reasonably and in good faith.

3. During the course of this Agreement, CDS reserves the right to require the Provider to reassign or otherwise remove any of its employees found unacceptable by CDS. In considering the Provider's employees' acceptability, CDS shall act reasonably and in good faith.

4. In signing this Agreement, the Provider certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it, and all persons associated with this Agreement, including any Subcontractors, including persons or corporations who have critical influence on or control over this Agreement, are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation by any Federal or State department or agency. 5. During the course of this Agreement, CDS reserves the right to require a background check on any of the Provider's personnel (employees and Subcontractors) that are in any way involved in the performance of this Agreement.

33. <u>STATE PROPERTY</u> The Provider shall be responsible for the proper custody and care of any Department or State owned property furnished for the Provider's use in connection with the performance of this Agreement, and the Provider will reimburse CDS for its loss or damage, normal wear and tear excepted.

34. PATENT, COPYRIGHT, AND OTHER PROPRIETARY RIGHTS

1. The Provider certifies that all services, equipment, software, supplies, and any other products provided under this Agreement do not, and will not, infringe upon or violate any patent, copyright, trade secret, or any other proprietary right of any third party. In the event of any claim by a third party against CDS, CDS shall promptly notify the Provider and the Provider, at its expense, shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless CDS against any loss, cost, expense, or liability arising out of such claim, including reasonable attorney fees.

2. The Provider may not publish or copyright any data without the prior approval of CDS. The State and the Federal Government, if applicable, shall have the right to publish, duplicate, use, and disclose all such data in any manner, and for any purpose whatsoever, and may authorize others to do so.

35. <u>PRODUCT WARRANTY</u> The Provider expressly warrants its products and services for one full year from their final written acceptance by CDS. The responsibility of the Provider with respect to this warranty is limited to correcting deficiencies in any deliverable using all the diligence and dispatch at its command, at no additional cost to CDS. The Provider is also responsible for correcting and/or updating any documentation affected by any operational support performed under this warranty provision.

36. <u>OPPORTUNITY TO CURE</u> The Agreement Administrator may notify the Provider in writing about CDS's concerns regarding the quality or timeliness of a deliverable. Within five (5) business days of receipt of such a notice, the Provider shall submit a corrective action plan, which may include the commitment of additional Provider resources, to remedy the deliverable to the satisfaction of the Agreement Administrator, without affecting other project schedules. CDS's exercise of its rights under this provision shall be not be construed as a waiver of CDS's right to terminate this Agreement pursuant to Section 13, Termination.

37. COVER If, in the reasonable judgment of the Agreement Administrator, a breach or default by the Provider is not so substantial as to require termination, and reasonable efforts to induce the Provider to cure the breach or default are unavailing, and the breach or default is capable of being cured by CDS or by another contractor without unduly interfering with the continued performance by the Provider, then CDS may provide or procure the services necessary to cure the breach or default, in which event CDS shall withhold from future payments to the Provider the reasonable costs of such services.

38. <u>ACCESSIBILITY</u> All IT products must be accessible to persons with disabilities, and must comply with the State Accessibility Policy and the Americans with Disabilities Act. All IT applications must comply with the Computer Application Program Accessibility

Standard (Maine.gov/oit/accessiblesoftware). All IT applications and contents delivered through web browsers must comply with the Website Standards (Maine.Gov/oit/webstandard) and the Website Accessibility Policy (Maine.Gov/oit/accessibleweb).

39. <u>STATE IT POLICIES</u> All IT products and services delivered as part of this Agreement must conform to the State IT Policies, Standards, and Procedures (Maine.Gov/oit/oitpolicies) effective at the time this Agreement is executed

40. CONFIDENTIALITY

1. All materials and information given to the Provider by CDS, or acquired by the Provider on behalf of CDS, whether in verbal, written, electronic, or any other format, shall be regarded as confidential information.

2. In conformance with applicable Federal and State statutes, regulations, and ethical standards, the Provider and CDS shall take all necessary steps to protect confidential information regarding all persons served by CDS, including the proper care, custody, use, and preservation of records, papers, files, communications, and any such items that may reveal confidential information about persons served by CDS, or whose information is utilized in order to accomplish the purposes of this Agreement.

3. In the event of a breach of this confidentiality provision, the Provider shall notify the Agreement Administrator immediately.

4. The Provider shall comply with the Maine Public Law, Title 10, Chapter 210-B (Notice of Risk to Personal Data Act).

41. OWNERSHIP

1. All data (including Geographical Information Systems data), notebooks, plans, working papers and other works produced, and equipment and products purchased in the performance of this Agreement are the property of CDS, or the joint property of CDS and the Federal Government, if Federal funds are involved. The State (and the Federal Government, if Federal funds are involved) shall have unlimited rights to use, disclose, duplicate, or publish for any purpose whatsoever all information and data developed, derived, documented, or furnished by the Provider under this Agreement, or equipment and products purchased pursuant to this Agreement. The Provider shall furnish such information and data, upon the request of CDS, in accordance with applicable Federal and State laws.

2. Upon termination of this Agreement for any reason, or upon request of CDS, the Provider agrees to convey to CDS good titles to purchased items free and clear of all liens, pledges, mortgages, encumbrances, or other security interests.

42. <u>CUSTOM SOFTWARE</u> For all custom software furnished by the Provider as part of this agreement, the following terms and conditions shall apply:

1. CDS shall own all custom software. CDS shall grant all appropriate Federal and State agencies a royalty-free, non-exclusive, and irrevocable license to reproduce,

modify, publish, or otherwise use, and to authorize others to do so, all custom software. Such custom software shall include, but not be limited to, all source, object and executable code, operating system instructions for execution, data files, user and operational/administrative documentation, and all associated administrative, maintenance, and test software that are relevant to this Agreement.

2. A fundamental obligation of the Provider is the delivery to CDS of all ownership rights to the complete system, free of any claim or retention of rights thereto by the Provider. The Provider acknowledges that this system shall henceforth remain the sole and exclusive property of CDS, and the Provider shall not use or describe such software and materials without the written permission of CDS. This obligation to transfer all ownership rights to CDS on the part of the Provider is not subject to any limitation in any respect.

43. <u>OFF-THE-SHELF (OTS) SOFTWARE</u> For all OTS software purchased by the Provider as part of this Agreement, the following terms and conditions shall apply.

1. This Agreement grants to CDS a non-exclusive and non-transferable license to use the OTS software and related documentation for its business purposes. CDS agrees that the Provider may, at its own expense, periodically inspect the computer site in order to audit the OTS software supplied by the Provider, installed at CDS's site, at mutually agreed upon times. In the event that a separate license agreement accompanies the OTS software, then the terms of that separate license agreement supersede the above license granted for that OTS software.

2. This Agreement does not transfer to CDS the title to any intellectual property contained in any OTS software. CDS will not decompile or disassemble any OTS software provided under this Agreement, or modify any OTS software that bears the copyright notice of a third party. CDS will make and maintain no more than one archival copy (for back-up purpose) of each OTS software, and each copy will contain all legends and notices, and will be subject to the same conditions and restrictions as the original.

3. If the CPU on which any OTS software is licensed becomes temporarily unavailable, use of such OTS software may be temporarily transferred to an alternative CPU until the original CPU becomes available.

44. <u>SOFTWARE AS SERVICE</u> When the software is fully owned, hosted, and operated by the Provider, and CDS uses said software remotely over the Internet, the following terms and conditions shall apply:

1. The Provider, as depositor, shall enter into an escrow contract, upon terms acceptable to CDS, with a recognized software Escrow Agent. The escrow contract must provide for CDS to be an additional party/beneficiary. The Provider shall deposit with the Escrow Agent the software, all relevant documentation, and all of CDS's data, and all updates thereof (the "Deposit Materials"), in electronic format. Deposits will occur no less frequently than once a month.

2. The escrow contract shall provide for the retention, administration, and controlled access of the Deposit Materials, and the release of the Deposit Materials to CDS, upon receipt of a joint written instruction from CDS and the Provider, or upon

receipt of written notice from CDS that:

a. The Provider has failed to carry out its obligations set forth in the this Agreement; or

b. A final, non-appealable judicial determination that the Provider has failed to continue to do business in the ordinary course; or

c. The Provider has filed a voluntary petition in bankruptcy, or any voluntary proceeding relating to insolvency, receivership, liquidation, or composition for the benefit of creditors, or becomes subject to an involuntary petition in bankruptcy, which petition or proceeding is not dismissed or unstayed within sixty (60) days from the date of filing; or

d. The Provider is in material breach of its maintenance and support obligations and has failed to cure such breach within thirty (30) days from the date of receipt by the Provider of written notice of such breach; or

e. A condition has occurred that materially and adversely impacts the Provider's ability to support the software and the Provider has failed to cure such condition within thirty (30) days from the date of receipt by the Provider of written notice of such condition.

3. The Provider is responsible for all fees to be paid to the Escrow Agent.

4. The Escrow Agent may resign by providing advance written notice to both CDS and the Provider at least thirty (30) calendar days prior to the date of resignation. In such an event, it is the obligation of the Provider to establish a new escrow account with a new Escrow Agent.

45. PRICE PROTECTION

1. The Provider shall ensure that all prices, terms, and warranties included in this Agreement are comparable to, or better than, the equivalent terms being offered by the Provider to any present customer meeting the same qualifications or requirements as CDS. If, during the term of this Agreement, the Provider enters into agreement(s) that provide more favorable terms to other comparable customer(s), the Provider shall provide the same terms to CDS.

2. If Federal funding is used for the acquisition of products and/or services under this Agreement, interest cannot be paid under any installment purchase or lease-purchase agreement entered into as a part of this Agreement.

OR

45. THIS ITEM IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

46. **IRREVOCABLE LETTER OF CREDIT** In order to assure the Provider's faithful adherence to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the Provider shall submit an irrevocable letter of credit, acceptable to CDS, that is payable on demand. This letter of credit will be procured at the expense of the Provider, naming CDS as the beneficiary, in the entire

Agreement amount. In lieu of this requirement, CDS will accept a commitment letter from a recognized financial institution or investment fund stating that the Provider has sufficient capital to fund the obligations, and has legally committed such capital to fund the obligations, in accordance with this Agreement. The letter of credit, or the equivalent commitment letter, shall specifically refer to this Agreement, and shall bind the parties to all the terms and conditions of this Agreement. The Provider shall have fifteen (15) calendar days from the date of execution of this Agreement to furnish the letter of credit or the equivalent commitment letter. Should the Provider fail to comply with this section, then CDS shall have the right to terminate this Agreement without liability.

OR

46. THIS ITEM IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

47. ENTIRE AGREEMENT This document contains the entire Agreement of the parties, and neither party shall be bound by any statement or representation not contained herein. No waiver shall be deemed to have been made by any of the parties unless expressed in writing and signed by the waiving party. The parties expressly agree that they shall not assert in any action relating to this Agreement that any implied waiver occurred between the parties which is not expressed in writing. The failure of any party to insist in any one or more instances upon strict performance of any of the terms or provisions of this Agreement, or to exercise an option or election under this Agreement, shall not be construed as a waiver or relinquishment for the future of such terms, provisions, option, or election, but the same shall continue in full force and effect. Use of one remedy shall not waive CDS's right to use other remedies. Failure of CDS to use a particular remedy for any breach shall not be deemed as a waiver for any subsequent breach. No waiver by any party of any one or more of its rights or remedies under this Agreement shall be deemed to be a waiver of any prior or subsequent rights or remedies under this Agreement.

RIDER G IDENTIFICATION OF COUNTRY IN WHICH CONTRACTED WORK WILL BE PERFORMED

Please identify the country in which the services purchased through this contract will be performed:

United States. Please identify state: _____

Other. Please identify country:

Notification of Changes to the Information

The Provider agrees to notify the Division of Purchases of any changes to the information provided above.

. .

Child Development Services Mileage Reimbursement Policy DJB

.

Child Development Services Policy **DJB**

Travel, Lodging and Meal Reimbursement Policy

It is the policy of Child Development Services to provide for reimbursement of employee expenses for:

- travel with their own vehicle for CDS business.
- meals and lodging while an employee is away from their normal working and living residence while on official business.

This policy has adopted the rules set forth in Chapter 10 of the State of Maine State Administrative and Accounting Manual issued by the Office of the State Controller and will be updated accordingly.

Part I – Basic Rules

Assignment of Official Headquarters

Each CDS employee will be assigned an official headquarters by the CDS Regional Site Director.

- 1. All employees will be assigned to the Main or Satellite Office of the Regional Site.
- 2. For employees whose duties are at other than an established CDS Main or Satellite Office more than three days per week, the designed official headquarters may be the official's residence, if approved in writing by the CDS State Director and such designation is advantageous to CDS without prejudice to the employee.

Regional Site responsibilities

CDS Regional Site Directors and their designees for directing travel and approving reimbursement, are to:

- 1. Ensure that any travel costs incurred are:
 - Directly work related,
 - Obtained at the most economical price,
 - Obtained at the most efficient method, and
 - Both critical and necessary for CDS business.
- 2. Exercise prudent judgment in approving travel-related costs.

Restrictions on reimbursement for privately-owned motor vehicle use

Definitions of terms used in Mileage Reimbursement Rules:

Points of Travel:

Official Residence (OR) - an employee's home

Official Duty Station (OS) – the worksite to which the employee is normally assigned Note: For employees who are headquartered out of their homes, their OR and OS are one and the same.

Temporary Duty Station (TDS) – a location where the employee is assigned to work on a temporary basis

Types of Trips:

Round trip – the employee travels from one point to another and returns to the first point. It involves no stops between the first and second point in either direction.



A ←----- B

Triangle – the employee travels between the OR, OS and TDS and back to the OR. An employee may also travel to the TDS before the OS, that is, from the OR to the TDS to the OS, and back to the OR.

 $\text{OR} \dashrightarrow \text{OS} \dashrightarrow \text{TDS}$

OR ←----- back

Straight Line – the employee travels between two points and may make one or more stops along the way in one or both directions.

A ----- D

Mileage Reimbursement Rules

- A. When an employee travels between his OS and his OR in either direction without stopping at a TDS the employee's mileage is <u>never</u> reimbursable.
- B. All miles are reimbursable when an employee travels between TDSs.

Round trips

1a. When an employee travels from an OS to a TDS and back to the OS, all miles are reimbursable.

1b. When an employee travels round trip directly between his OR and a TDS and back to his OR, he is reimbursed for the lesser of the round trip miles between his OR and the TDS or the round trip miles between his OS and the TDS.

Example: An employee lives in Topsham (OR) and works in Lewiston (OS). The employee has a day appointment in Lisbon (TDS) with Head Start Director. How do you calculate the miles?

- 1. Miles from Topsham (OR) to Lisbon (TDS) equals 9 miles. Round trip equals 18 (2*9) miles.
- 2. Miles from Lisbon (TDS) to Lewiston (OS) equals 8 miles. Round trip equals 16 (2*8) miles.
- 3. <u>Answer:</u> Lesser miles calculated in #2 or 16 miles

Triangles

2a. When an employee travels as part of a triangle between his OR and a TDS, in either direction, he is reimbursed for the lesser of the miles from his OR to the TDS or from his OS to the TDS.

Example: An employee lives in Topsham (OR) and works in Lewiston (OS). The employee has scheduled a meeting in Monmouth (TDS) for 8:00 am and will be leaving from home to go to Monmouth. The employee goes to the office (OS) after his meeting in Monmouth. How do you calculate the miles?

- 1. Miles from Topsham (OR) to Monmouth (TDS) equals 8 miles.
- 2. Miles from Lewiston (OS) to Monmouth (TDS) equals 17 miles.
- 3. Employee gets reimbursed for 8 miles for the first meeting.
- 4. Employee travels to office (OS) from Monmouth (TDS) and gets reimbursed for 17 miles.
- 5. Employee goes home (OR) from the office (OS) and does not get reimbursed for traveling home.

2b. When an employee travels as part of a triangle between a TDS and his OS, in either direction, all miles are reimbursable.

Straight Lines

3. If there is one or more TDS between an employee's OR and OS in a straight line, reimbursement is made in accordance with 2a and 2b of the triangle rules.

Additional

Working during hours or days that the employee is not normally scheduled to work **does not** entitle the employee to reimbursement for transportation mileage expenses incurred between their official residence and their official headquarters.

Example: An employee works 10 hour days Monday through Thursday and has Fridays off. The employee is required to come into the office on Friday, to take care of an emergency. The employee leaves from home and travels to the office to take care of the emergency and returns home. The employee is not entitled to mileage reimbursement, since the trip is considered the employee's normal commute.

When an employee is assigned to work at more than one location (building) within their official headquarters, they may be reimbursed only for the miles driven between the work locations. The mileage from home to the additional work/training location is not reimbursable if it is in the same city as the official headquarters.

Ed Techs assigned to a specific location does not receive reimbursement for mileage. The specific location becomes his/her Official Duty Station (OS) and traveling from his/her home would be considered commuting. If the assigned specific location ends for any reason the

employee may be reassigned to another location which becomes his/her new Official Duty Station (OS).

Reimbursement for the use of a privately owned motor vehicle is payable to only one traveler when two or more travelers are traveling in the same motor vehicle on the same trip.

All out-of-state travel must be approved by the CDS State Director prior to booking the trip.

Part II - CDS Accountability Plan and Employee Mileage Reimbursement Form

CDS Accountability Plan

CDS has an "Accountable Plan" as defined by the Internal Revenue Service and is not taxable to the employees. Amounts paid under an accountable plan are not wages and are not subject to income tax withholding and payment of social security, Medicare, and Federal Unemployment (FUTA) Taxes.

In order to qualify as an accountable plan, the reimbursement or allowance arrangement must require that the employees meet all <u>three</u> of the following rules:

- 1. There must be a business connection to the expenditure. This means that the expense must be a deductible business expense incurred in connection with services performed as an employee. If not reimbursed by the employer, the expense would be deductible by the employee on his/her 1040 income tax return.
- 2. There must be "adequate" accounting by the recipient within a reasonable period of time. This means that your employees must verify the date, time, place, amount and the business purpose of the expenses. Receipts are required unless the reimbursement is made under a per diem plan.
- 3. Excess reimbursements or advances must be returned within a reasonable period of time. Reasonable depends upon facts and circumstances.

If the expenses covered by this arrangement are not substantiated or amounts in excess of expenses are not returned within a reasonable period of time, the amount is treated as paid under a nonaccountable plan. This amount is then subject to income tax withholding and payment of social security, Medicare, and FUTA taxes for the first payroll period following the end of the reasonable period.

Employee Mileage Reimbursement Form

The Employee Mileage Reimbursement Form has been revised to include the employee residential city or town, position, miles (residence to site) and location of site. <u>Please note mileage reimbursement must</u> be submitted within 90 days of mileage reimbursable expense.

- Reimbursable miles are calculated according to the formula lesser of the miles.
- Please attach receipts for tolls, etc.
- Only originals will be accepted for processing.

Part III -- Lodging Expenses

Lodging expenses are reimbursed on the following terms:

- Lodging is generally not reimbursable if the lodging site is within a 100-mile radius of the traveler's residence or office.
- Reimbursement is based on the amount actually incurred, and is subject to a maximum dollar limit up to the allowable rates established by the U.S. General Services Administration Per Diem Rates
- Original, itemized receipts for all lodging expenses are required for reimbursement.

Part IV - Meals and Incidental Expenses

Meals and incidentals for travelers on Child Development Services business are reimbursed based on the following terms:

- Meals and incidental expenses will not be reimbursed unless the entire length of the trip is at least 24 hours or the travel includes an overnight stay verified by a lodging receipt. Some exceptions to this requirement may apply.
- The amount the traveler actually paid while on CDS business, subject to a limit for each full day on travel status up to the allowable rates established by the U.S. General Services Administration Per Diem Rates.
- Receipts are required for meal and incidental expenses claimed under the meal and lodging policy.

Approved: 9/9/2011

Required Forms:

Employee Mileage Reimbursement Form Employee Other Reimbursement Form

Appendix C

Child Development Services Letter from Commissioner Bowen to Commissioner Millett September 9,2013



Paul R. LePage Governor

STATE OF MAINE DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 23 STATE HOUSE STATION AUGUSTA, MAINE 04333

Stephen L. Bowen Commissioner

September 9, 2013

H. Sawin Millett, Jr. Commissioner Department of Administrative and Financial Services 78 State House Station Augusta, ME 04333-0078

Dear Commissioner Millett,

I am writing to update you on the progress undertaken in Child Development Services (CDS) in response to the Advisory Committee on Fair Competition with Private Enterprise. CDS staff at the state and local level have been reviewing, revising and implementing many new practices and procedures in the last twelve months. Much of this work involves making a concerted effort to improve our engagement with the CDS contracted provider partners. We believe we have made significant gains in multiple areas such as collaboration, finances, child programming and communications.

In this next legislative session, CDS will be proposing a major substantive rule for Contracted Providers that will define the process for how CDS establishes a roster of independent contractors for providing evaluations and services to children ages 0-5 and ensures that these services will be conducted according to the contracts with the providers. A final draft of the rule has been crafted and we will be seeking gubernatorial approval to file this week or next. We have set a date for a public hearing in October.

All contracts are now being generated at the state office level. We have revised the provider contract to clarify language related to the Maine Unified Special Education Regulations and expectations from contractors. Also, information and required documents have been made available on the CDS website under the provider section to further support statewide consistency.

A new and improved relationship with contracted providers has been a major focus both at the state and local levels. A prime example being the successful transfer of The Reach School in South Portland that operated for 15 years as a CDS-run preschool to Easter Seals of Maine. About 30 CDS employees have now become employed by Easter Seals in this huge shift that we all see as a win for families and children as well as our providers, employees and the CDS program.

We continue to engage other contracted providers in serious discussions about transferring the Learning Tree CDS pre-school in Brewer, and we anticipate a successful transfer later this fall. We are now beginning very preliminary discussions about the possible transition of our Oxford pre-school in the future.

FAX: (207) 624-6700

TTY: 711

We continue to communicate with providers on a regular basis, such as the meetings between CDS state office personnel, local directors and multiple speech language pathologists to improve the quality and timeliness of service delivery to children.

This fall, for the first time ever, we will launch a provider list serve which will allow open communication to be shared such as announcements, important program updates, sharing of intervention ideas and support to each other to happen in an interactive way.

As a result of improved accounting practices and a routine allocation schedule of revenue transfers we have reduced provider complaints about untimely payment to nearly non-existence. Invoices are being processed within the week they are received, if not the same day they are received, and are being paid on the contractually agreed upon basis within 30 days.

CDS has greatly increased the number of contracted vendors who are payed via the ACH process. Effective January 1, 2014, all vendors will be paid in this manner and emailing remittance information will be standard. A reduction on postage costs will be realized through this initiative.

CDS-employed staff productivity will be monitored system wide going into this fiscal year, with internal audits of employed provider services adherence to child plans and productive use of available work hours. This will provide the basis to develop a cost comparison between use of contractors and employees to provide evaluations and services.

In closing, substantial advancements are being made and we will continue on this path of progress. Please contact the Department with any questions or concerns.

Sincerely,

Stephen Bowen Commissioner of Education